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CONFIDENTIAL

10 DOWNING STREET
LONDON SWIA 2AA

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBIN BUTLER

SELECT COMMITTEE ON DEFENCE ce Miss Phillips,
OMCS

Can I bring you up to date? In my note on 10 May, I reported
that the matter had been remitted to the Clerk for Further
advica. He produced a lektter, copy attached, which was sent
to 8ir Leon Brittan guibbling furthar over alleged diffsrances
between Sir Leon's letter of 2B April, the statements made in
1986, and the transcript of the broadcasting an 7 Asnril.

Sir Leon, who ls becoming more and more exasperated, has
repliad to the Committee along the following lines (I have ot
BEa&n an exack text):

"L do not wish to be unhalpful, but I can add no mora
than repeat what I said in the House an 27 January 1986,
v1zZ,

My rt. hon. Friend the Prime Minister has set out

the facts relating te what has heen called the
"Westland Saga", and particularly the cirsumstances
relating to thes disclosure of information contained in
a latter of my hon. and learned Friend the
Solicitor-General. S5he has done so in great detail.
Somz of the facts only she can know about whsreas in
other events I myself was closely invalved. I can and
do confirm that with regard to the facts within my
knowledge, the account of my rt. hon. Friend the Prime
Minister is correct."™

The matter now rests with the Committee, It remainsg to be
seaen whether they still see mileage in pursuing it in the face
of such dead bat tactica. The difficulty Mr. Mates faces i=
that he cannct be absolutely sure of heing able to kill it
should a vote be callad.

This account is based on informal raports we have had of the

proceedings of the Committee and needs to be handled with cara
in praparing any response to PQs or correspondence.

ANDREW TURNBULL

l6 Jone 1989
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Seleer Committes on Dofonee have Biren vodglul vupsiderulun 1w your

etier of 28 April 1989 1w me, They have instructed me to write 1o you again in
respect Of some garticular aspects,

You say in your letter "l should make it ciecr, however, that in the interview I
cid nut add anything 10 the substance of what | had previvusly said about this matter...”
The Commitnee are of course aware thet, at the time of the events in questicn, you
made it clear that it all had to be subject to the agreement of No 10". They do o,
however, recail thar at the time you asserted in any way that the express approval of
officials ut No 10 was actually obtained, In the interview broadcast on 7 April, you

= | r
seid that

1he release of the Solivitor-General's letter was something which was approved
by Mr Charies Powell, the relevan: Private Secretary &t No 1), and it was
epproved by Mr Bernurd Ingham, the Prime Minister's Press Secretury.”

The Comminee find some difficulty in recanciling this ungualitied stalement with
e canclusion af Sir Roben Armstrong’s inquiry that there was a "difference of
understanding between officials as 1o exactly what was being sought and what was being
given”, and they would be grateful for any clarification thut you can offer upon this
point,

In your lever of 28 April you repeat the terms of part of what the Prime
Minster suid 10 the House on 27 January 1986, although you do net explicitly endorse
those terms. The Commities have asked me 10 Inquire whether you are shle to give
an unguililied endorsement of what the Prime Minister told the House on 27 January
| SIS,
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y & June, Any such reply

It would be very helpful to have your reply by Tussds
1 House reloting to evidence taken by Select

would be subject to the rules of t
Committees,

The Committee have asked me to say that, should for any reason you wish it,
they wis icudy W heur ural evidense from you on iy aspect of the matter, at a ume
convenient to you, They would ekpect to take such evidence in private unless you
wished otherwise,

They have also asked that you regard this letter as private communication

berween the Committes and yoursell,

I'would be grateful if you would acknowledye receipt of this lener, which is

being sent by courier,
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Robhert Ropers

Llerk of the Commiiiee

The Rt Hon Sir Leon Brittan, QC
Member of The Commissicn of the Eurcpean Communities
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FRIME MINISTER

WESTLAND

The Defence Select Committee decided to
follow the course of asking Sir Leon if
he stood by his remarks to see if there
is a basis for reopening the inguiry. I
will brief Press Office to correct any suggestions

that the inguiry has been reopened. 1 have
no details yet of who took what line. Though

it seems that Barney Hayhoe and John Wilkinson
favoured pursuing the issue, T am told that
John Cartwright (SDP) and Bruce George are

unenthusiastic.

(ANDREW TURNBULL)

19 April 19895




PRIME MINISTER

MR. SPEARING'S PQ TO THE LORD PRESIDENT

Mr. Spearing is trying to make the point

that 8ir Leon's remarks in the C4 programme
were the first time that either you, Sir Leon,
or S5ir Robert had mentioned Charles and Bernard
and were in that sense "new". But the Report
of the Select Committes mentioned names and

the Government did not seek to correct those
references in its response. Although we

would not want to endorse the Report in all
respects, we can rely on it in this ene.

Content with this answer?
Also attached is the transcript of the C4

programme. The relevant passage 1s at pages
26—-30.

(ANDREW TURNBULL)
7 April 1989




BBC1
& O'CLOCK NEWS
AFRIL 5, 198%

18.00

IREVOR MACDOWALD (Newsreader):

The Westland affair has been re-ocpened.

Two officials at Number 10 have baean named by

Sir leon Brittan as the men who authorised tha

leak which cost him his job. Tha two officials

are the Prime Minister's Private Sacratary and




har Press Secratary.

Three years after the Westland affair gave the
Government one of Iits most uncomfortable
moments one of its central characters has
ravealad new details about what really

happaned.

Sir Lecon Brittan, the man who had to resign as
Industry Secretary, has named two of the Prime
Minister's closest advisers as the pecple who

authorised the leak of a central document.

Tha document was a letter from the Solicitar-

Ganeral which was helpful to the Prime

Ministar's position. The civil servants who

are named by Sir Leon are Charlea Powell
{phonetic), who was than Mre Thatcher's Private
Secretary and Bernard Ingham, the Prime

Minister's Press Saoratary.

At the time Sir Leon took much of the blame for
the leak, now he says there would have been no
leak without the axpresa approval from Number

10,




Tonight Paddy Ashdown, the Democrats' leader

said, 'the dark secrat of Westland is now being

unravelad.

The Prime Minister has always denied that she
knew about the leak. Now the Labour Party is

demanding a statament to the House of Commons.,

PETER ALLEN (Reporting):

S5ir Leon Brittan, now a Eurcpean Commissioner
in Brussels, hLas gone further than ever before
in naming names and pointing the finger
directly at the inner counsels of Numbar 10.
Part of the letter from the Solicitor-Genaral
te the then Defence Secretary Michael
Heseltine, were leaked by a press ocfflcer in
Sir Leon's Trade and Industry Department. It
was intended teo undermine Mr Heseltina whe was

campaigning for a Eurcpaan stake in the

Westland Helicopter firm and, in the bitter

internal cCabilnet battle, was opposed by Sir

Leon and the Prime Minister.

The laak led directly to Mr Heseltina's




dramatic walk-out from the Cabinet and later to
8ir Leen's resignation too. Put even a Select

Committee inquiry failed to establiah just who

had approved the leak. In this new interview

Sir Leon makes that claar.

SIR LEON BRITTAN (Excerpt from interview):

Wall, tha release of the Solicitor-General's

letter was something which was approved by Mr

Charles Powell, the relevant Frivate Secretary
at Numbar 10, and it was approved by Mr Barnard

Ingham, the Prime Minister's Press Secretary.

EETER ALLEN:

This goes further than Sir Leon's own previous
statements in Parliament in which he merely
indicated the leak had had tha tacit agreement
of Number 10. Now he says it was directly
approved by two of the Prime Minister's closest
advisers, Charles Powell, her Private Secretary

and Bernard Ingham, her Press Officer.

This will increasea the suspicions that some

paopla hava hald that Mra Thatcher nust hava

known despite her denials that she was




consulted.

Toeday Labour MP, Dr John Gilbert, who led the
intense questioning in the Dafence Select
Committee's investigation inte the Westland
affair, says the truth is now unravelling and

the Prime Minister must have been involved.

JOHN GILEBERT, HP {(Labour):

I don't know if she was party to the fact that
the letter was going to be, as I say, leaked in
a very tendentious and damaging way to
Sacretary of State for Defence at that time, Mr
Heseltine, but I'm sure that Powell and Inghanm
would not have done what they did unless they
were totally confident that they had the Prime

Minister's backing for it.

PETER ALLEN:
Mr Hesaltine remained tight-lipped today.

MICHAEL HESELITINE:

I made a vary full statement the day I left the

Governmant, I havea nailthar added to nor

subtracted from that statement since, and I




don't intend to do so now.

EETER ALLEN:
Bernard Ingham kriskly said he had ro comment

whatsoever, but Labour's Jahn Smith, who was at

the time Sir Leon's Shadow, called today for a

Prime Ministerial statement.

But the ghost of Westland still seems to haunt
this government and it's now widely expected
that there will be further revelations emerging
from those whose careers were blighted by the

affair.

FRESENTER:
Part of that was taken from a Channel 4

interview with sir Laon Brittan.




ITV
MEWS AT 5.40
APRIL 5, 1989

17,40

TREVOR MagDONALD (Presenter):
Labour MPs today damanded a new statement on

the Waestland Helicopter affair arfter a

television interview by the former Trade

Secretary, Slr Lecn Brittan.

In it he names two of Mrs Thatchar's closast




officials, who he said approved the leak of a
erucsial latter £frem hia dapartmant. A the

time Sir Leon tock responsibllity for the leak

and resigned.

PETER ALLEN (Reporting):
Tha scandal surrounding Westland Halicoptars

didn't just cost tha jgks of twe Cablnet

Ministers, it produced one of the worst pericds

of Mrs Thatcher's tTaen yeara as Prime Minister.
The row over the future of Westland culminated
in the leaking of a lettar to Mr Heseltine, a
leak which in effect finished off the Defence
Secratary's campaign for a European future for
Wastland. That leak came from the Departmant
of Trade and Industry. Sir Leaon Brittan took
regponsibility and reaigned, even though he
claimed then that HNumbear 10 had agresd to tha

laak.

But in this Channel 4 programme, 'The Thatcher

Factor' Sir Leon goes furthar.

SIR LEON BRITTAN (Excerpt L{rom Drogramme):

Wall *the releasa of the Solicitor-Genaral's




letter was something which was appreved by Mr
Charles Powell, the relevant Private Secratary
at Number 10, and it was approved by Mr Bernard

Ingham, the Prime Minister's Press Secretary.

EETER ALLEN:
That puts the spotlight back on cCharles Powell
and Mr Ingham, who are among Mrs Thatcher's

most crugted advisars,

JOHN _GILBERT, MP (Labour):

Well it means that it nails down Bernard Ingham
and Charles Powell for tha roles that thay

parformed in this grubby 1ittle affair.

PETER ALLEN:
Labour MPs have attempted to raise the issue
already in the Commons today. Downing Street

is rafusing commant.

Peter Allaen, ITH, Wastminster.




CONFIDENTIAL

1O DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Privale Secretary

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

SIR DAVID WOLFSON'S QUESTIONS

Thank you for your helpful minute of 4 February, and for
those Erom Mr Ingham and Mr Wiggins of the same date.

In the light of what the minutes say, I am even more
convinced of the disadvantages of the Prime Minister
volunteering further information in answer to these, and
any other, guestions. It is, however, useful to have the
various forms available, should we find it necessary to

answer thasa guestions (though I wery much hope that we do
not have to).

I have not sought the Prime Minister's views on the
suggested answers. She would, of course, have to clear them
parsonally before thay could be used.

I am copying this minute to Mr Wiggins (Cabinet Office) and
to Mr Ingham, Mr Powell and Mr Flesher {(Ho.l0),

N.C.U.

H.L. Wicks
5 February 1986

CONFIDENTIAL




CONFIDERTIAL

Ref, ADBE/371

MR WICES

Wiggins
Powesll
ILngham
Plesher

Thank you for your minute of 3 February about Sir David
Wolfson's four guestions on the affair of the disclosure of the

Bolicitor General's letter of & January.

On the first guestion, an answer might read:

"Phe letter which the then Secretary of State for Defence
sant to Mr Horne on 3 January, and which was made public,
could have been read as calling into guestion whether the
Prime Minister's letter of 1 January to S5ir John Cuckney
{which had been agreed with the Solicitor General) could be
ralied opon by the directors and shareholders of Westland as
an accurate and in no way misleading statement by the
Government. Since the Prime Minister's letter was being so
rmlied upon, the Prime Minister thought it important that
the Defence Secretary's letter should be subject to

examination by the Selicitor General, since it had not been

cleared with him before publication, and that the Solicitor

General should consider writing to the Defence Secratary, if
he thought that the Defence Secretary's letter was

inaccurate or misleading. ™

On the second guestion, an answer might read:

L
CONFIDENTIAL
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4,

CONPIDENTIAL

"The basis of the conversations was that the Secretary of
State for Trade and Industry wanted brought into the public
domain the fact that the Solicitor General had written to
tha then Secretary of State for Defence and the opinicn he
had expressed. As I made clear, my office were right in
thinking that 1 should share that general view., They did

not se=k my agreament for the specific disclosure proposed

or for the method proposed. They noted that the Department
of Trade and Industry had their Secretary of State's
authority, and made it clear that they were content for the
Department to proceed on that basis. In view of the
perceived need for urgency they agreed the method of
disgclosure proposed: an aspect of the mattar which, as I

have made clear, I and they regret.”

Your draft answer to the third guestion might more happily

end "but they had not objected to the DTI doing s0%,. 1 do not

feel able to comment otherwise, since 1 do not know what passed.

- 8

[ do not know whether Mr Brittan has ever been asksd the

fourth guestiony if so, we had belter make sure that what i=

proposed is consistent with what he said. Subject to that, I

should be content with your draft,

b.

But I share your view that we should not advise the Prime

Ministar ta voluntesr thege (ar any other) answers to these

gquestions, for the reasons which the Prime Minister herself has

indicated to 8ir David Welfson, and those given in Mr Wiggin's

minute of today's date, with which I entirely agree.

ROBERT ARMSTRONG

4 February 1386

2
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CONFIDENTIAL

MR WICES co Mre Stark

Slr Davrid Welfson's Questions.

ik

You asked in your minute of 5 February for advice on

the answers which might be given to four questions raised

by Sir David Wolfsom. I have, of course, no direct knowledge

of the true answers to some of these questions; and I very

much share your instinct that it would be better to aveid
further specific disclosures where this is possible. There

are some areas where each guestion answered Tuns the risk

of prompting B further and possibly more difficult question;

at the least we should have & clear idea how such supplementaries
would be dealt with before proposing any fresh statement by

the Prime Minister.

2 I agree that the gquestion why the Prime Minister prompted
the Solicitor General's letter was satisfactorily dealt with
by the Prime Minister in her speech on 27 January. (This is
covered in the separate note I have sent vou.) There
remalins the question what the Prime Minister intended should
happen after the Solicitor General had written his letter
pointing out the material inaccuracies. The answer might
perhaps be on the lines:

"First step was to establish whether there were material
inaccuracies. If there were, the next step would have

been for Mr Heseltine to correct them."

This then leads into questioning sbout whether it had really
been essential to disclose the Sclicitor General's letter before
Mr Heseltine had any opportunity te reply, and whether the
disclosure should have been selective, i.e. omitting the point
that the Solicitor General's opinion explicitly rested on

1
COMPIDENTIAL




CONFIDENTIAL

there being no further evidence heyond what he had already

SoEn .

- On the implications of 'it was accepted...', I would feel
rather uncomfortable about the f£irst sentence of the answer
yOoUu propose. Was it reasonable for vour Office to judge
"that it was within the authority of the Department of Trade
and Industry to disclose certaim contents of the Solicitor
General's letter'? Given this difficulty, I should be
inclined to rest on what has already been said.

4, On the meaning of 'in general terms', once dgain I am

in ne position to comment on the facts., I see no specific
objection to your propused answer, which is entirely consistent
with what has already heen said; but saying anything even
s§lightly new in this area risks exposure to further guestions
why the Ko 10 Private Office were not immediately gquestioned

in more detail about their involvement in the disclosure, and
why guestions were not at once asked by the Prime Minister of

the DTI about the exdct circumstances of disclosture.

g As to the reason why Mr Brittan saild nothing to the

Prime Minister about his involvement in the disclesure for

16 days, my instinct iz that the Prime Minister would he well
advised to avoid further comment - this is, asfter all, a matter
for Mr Brittan. 1f the Prime Minister were to give the answer

you suggest, this would prompt thefurther question why Mr Brittanm

did not react to the establishment of the enguiry. Given the

high degree of open-ness about the disclosure, it must have been
very clear to Mr Brittan and all others concerned in the DTI

that the engquiry would be bound to discover their part in the
disclosure; 1f Mr Brittan thought the Prime Minsiter was herself
aware of all the circumstances of the disclosure, what could the
intentions of the Prime Minister have been in agreeing to the
establishment of the enguiry?

S
A T WIGGLINS
Cabinet Office.
4 February, 1986 3
CONFIDENTIAL




CONMFIDENTIAL

ME WICES

Reference your minute of February 3 on Sir David Wolfson's
comments about the Prime Minister's comments on the Weskland
disclosure.

I have no comments on your draft Answers to Points 1 or 4.

On your draft answer to Point 2, I would prefer to say in
line 4:

"eus..letter, and they were prepared to go along with

the DTI1's judgment™

NB: I did guery the proposed method; I did not gquaestion the
decision to disclose.

The second paragraph of your draft Answer does not, of
course, deal with the crux of the matter: why DTI should
believe we were giving them "cover™ when no specific request

for approval was sought or given,

On Para 3, 1 am not competent to advise since I do not know
what was said to the Prime Minister. However, if the facts
fit the following might serve:

“The Prime Minister was tgld by her office that No 10
had not disclosed the Solicitor General's letter.
There had besen some contacts between her office and DTI

and her office had not stood in the way of disclosure.”

1 remain, however, very nervous about going so far, even

assuming that is what was said.

o

BERNARD INGHAM

4 February 1986
CONFIDENTIAL




CONFIDENTIAL

10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

§ir Robert Armstrong.

CalCail
Mr. Wiggins (Cabinat Office)
Mr. Fowell

Mr. Ingham

Mr. Flesher

Sir David Wolfsen told the Prime Minister on Friday evening
that her statements to Parliament left unclear four
questions on the affair of the disclosure of the Solicitor
General's letter. He believed that if the Prime Minister
could, in some way, answer these questions, the Government's
position would be much strengthened and accusations about a
"cover up" could be disposed of.

The Prime Minister indicated to Sir David that she was
reluctant to give further detailed information to Parliament
on these matters. Answers, however specific, could generate
further gquestions; detailed answers might stimulate
unhelpful glosses; and they might, in any event, suggest a
spurious accuracy about recollections. She did, howaver,
ask me to check with you whether answers could be found to
Sir David's four questions which might, if necessary, be
used in public.

The gquestions were as follows:

1. Why did the Prime Minister prompt the Solicitor
General's letter?

The Prime Minister has dealt with this exhaustively in
her statement last Monday (Col. 652 Hanzard, 27
January), and I think this question can easily be
answered by reference to that.

2. What is meant by "It was accepted ..."™ in the sentence
"It was accepted that the Department of Trade and Industry
should disclose that fact and that, in view of the urgency
of the matter, disclosure should be made by means of a
telephone communication to the Press Association™ (Col. 450
Hansard, 23 January).

CONFIDEMTIAL
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A possible answer here might be on the following lines:

The Mo.l0 office accepted that it was within the
authority of the Department of Trade and Industry to
disclose certain contents of the Salicitor General's
letter, and they were content to abide by DTI's
judgement. No.l0 saw no reason therefere to take any
other decision on the disclosure. DTI officials, as
the Prime Minister explained in the House on 27 January
(Col. 655 Hansard), had a different understanding of
the conversation,:

"They believed that they had the agreement of my
office, and acted in good faith, in the knowledge that
they had authority from their Secretary of State and
cover from my office." (Col. 655, Hansard 27 Jannary).

. = What is meant by the phrase "in general terms" in the
sentence in the Prime Minister's statement "1 was told, in
general terms, that there had been contacts between my
office and the Department of Trade and Industry®™ (Col,
657, Hansard 27 January).

A poseible answer here is:

"The Prime Minister was told by her office that the
Department of Trade and Industry had spoken to No.lO
about publication, No.l0 had declined to disclose the
Solicitor General's letter, but they had not teld DTI
not to disclose it."

The problem with this answer is that it could suggest a
somewhat spurious accuracy.

4. Why had the then Secretary of State for Trade and
Industry not told the Prime Minister about his invelvement
in the disclosure for 16 days?

He had not raised the issue with the Prime Minister
because he believed that No.l0 knew the full
clrcumstances of the disclosura. This was not the casae
because of the genuine difference in understanding
batween officials which the Prime Minister referred to
in her statement of 27 January (Col. 655 Hansard).

For the reasons advanced in the second paragraph of this
minute, I would not readily advise the Prime Minister to
answer these guestions, Nevertheless, we may find that we
nead to, and I should therefore be grataful for urgent
advice, both from you and the other recipients of this
minute, on the various answers suggested above.

N.Lu.

NLW

3 February, 1986.

COMFIDENTIAL
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e
. { MR. NEIL KINNOCK {(Islwyn): Afer persistent efforts,
we have managed to pull & statement from the r h Lady.
It had a details® produced not by frankness but by guilt =
+
unerasable guilt. That stainm will %!ay with the r h Lady

Foer as long as she endures in politics_ Her excuses
e

e
are completgy ﬁpﬁiauaible, She ecannot justify or excuse

the conduct of her Govt in any cne respect.

{Ern thia squalid steory, we have been told that

the leaking of the Soclicitor-General's letter was authorised v

iﬁﬁﬁtwrcuﬁﬂ¢musdhi e L4

i

q_autnfffﬂﬂgfhy the r h Lady's office /connived in W
L

by her hffiqu ;-5.11F says the Prime Minister, with her
aubsequent endorsement. We must ask the Prime Minister,
eapecially given her personalised and centralised style of
fﬂgvt, where she was on & January #hihaL ahe could
not be contacted onk matter as basie and essential as this.
She has a duty to tell the Hse what =he was dolng when her

foicé , A% zhe says, was getting on with the business

by itsI;f.

L_He have been told that the matter qg-authbrised.
What was actually authorised was a conspiracy by people
in the Department of Trade and Industry and people from
Svar the r h Lady's office to diaclose certain parts of
a letter written by a Law Officer to another membhers of
the Cabinet about a matt&r_ﬂf important public business,
That was their way, we are told, of putting it into the

publi¢c domain. That was the route chosen - not by open

&
means, but by sub%ffuge and dishonest means.

7




L_HE have been tocld that there was an inguiry.
Indeed,; there have been answers in the Hze from Miniaters,
iﬁ;auding the Frime Minister, saying that an earnest

inquiry waz being und:d;ﬂk:n in the normal fashion. We
have to ask: why was there arn inguiry when everybody kneuz?r j

—
> -t - ——

Why was there an inquiry when

everybody knew that there would be no prozecution because

the dispensation had been giqpﬁ? The only cormrsserbin-
£ Dy [T
prqﬂadanﬁgwith this act of contrived insincerity is the
B e

wayywhich Macbketh 5o fiercely loocked arcund for Diuncan's

murderers.

C

{h We hear from the Frime Minister thap an immunity
was oflfered. Why was that the case when it was plain that

there Wwas Lo be o prosecution?

e We have heard a shabby story - an effort te defraud
the publie. The fact is that the Prime Minister, the
Secy of State for Trade and Industry and everyone elae

involved would have got away with iﬁ, were it not for

the fact that in this democracy ultimately the

Frime Hinisterag-tu make &8 statement. TFayekisrrbgie—ewe

Lot Zway weth<ik. They would have dealt with the former
Member of the Cabinet, the Seecy of State for Defence,

e
not by the means available tob ?T Prime Minister, if she

bélieved that he was acting contrary to the national interest.-




|'—-\.
. not by sacking hir_rnjr_ but by trying dishonestly and

covertly to subvert him. That is a profound dishonesty.

F follows




‘.H,.-"LP 3.45-3.50 pm

Mr Einnock spkg

e

For the Govt to leak in order to inform and influence public opinion
i{g normal. For a Govt to leak in order to discredit anyone 1is
shameful. For a Govt to leak in order to subvert a menber of
Lhat
.Jf: Govt is the action of a Govt who are rotten not just to the

5=

core but from the Eﬂrgrflhﬂl khﬂgjﬁifﬂﬁhlffjﬁﬁ

THE PRIME MINR: -iﬂ—the—light—af—whﬁt—tht—r—h—E=EiLd.
= E‘l'u'utl’\f“ |.I-\_ 'Ill-'-"ﬁ*. *1": r'l"'l fi_ll .\_,i_l.l-df-l

WL totally re;ect: A he has seen from the

ll'r_'l.{'l
snlicitor-General's letter, the Govt *:- a duty to give accurate

information and not to give any misleading information because
that information could be used to make commercial Jjudgments
Because there was a possible inaccuracy,it was important to get
accurate information into the public domain in tTime for the
meeting at 4 o'clock. I agree, as 1 have said, that it should

have been done by & more cnrrect method. The fact is that I

,._,..-i'r-l..-L-r-{-n.q-q_
was not consulted, as I .:ﬁlaln the statement. fjiea

e —

1 did institute an inguiry and the r h G would have been the

woleel
first to castigate me if I not.. [Interruptiﬂn:]
.-_-_-_-_-_,_.—._-_

Lf? SPEAKER: Order. The Leader of the Opposition was heard

in silence &%d $hc Prime Minr deserves a fair hearing.

&>




-fi"'_ -—n-{:r-ﬁ;\liz_‘x
- on

14 January. I instituted that inguiry to find the full facts

'. L'ILH.E PRIME MINR: I instituted an inguiry

because they were not known. The inguiry reported on 22 January

and I have made a full statement today, 23 January.

ILE-_IF.ﬁ EDWARD GARDNER (Fylde): Does my r h F the Prime Minr

agree that if, as appears to be the case, my r h and 1 F the

-t
Secy of State for Trade and Industry had been aware’é: been

made aware of what he believed tc have been the misleading
infermation which could have sericusly damaged the future of

kol
Westland, would F not have been TEEme an overriding and

imperative duti!t& c:rj_r'r.:a:t that misleading information
to prgtict Westland from further damage] —<c-ef "if:{‘ —Zf

s oo 1= i i e
'%T he had not fulfilled that duty he would have been failing
ol

in his mﬁfuﬁ secy of Statcl.?

tPHE PRIME MINR: I believe that my ’ h and 1 F's analysis
is the correct one. The Govt had a duty to see that no misleading
statements were made. Therefore, possible inaccuracies had to
-p-“ he public domain at the relevant ti
come the c domain a e relevant time because
. F

commercial judgments were about to be taken,

tm DAVID STEEL (Tweeddale, Ettrick and Lauderdale): Is the

Prime Minr aware that her statement reveals yet another chapter

sl
of shabby and astonishing behaviour E@ the higher reaches of
e
%e Govt? Does she recognise that she owes the House and the
L




E ;
® W

and the Civil Service an apelogy? She K@ allowed nine days
Ly

of a charade ﬂfﬁinqui:y when she could have cleared up the

matter in 10 minutes by calling in her colleague, the Secy of

Crelt)
State for Trade and Industry and her; press officer. ILH‘“

; } e o T o
.f"ur/(' ! = v was the Solicitor-General

not told that his letter was to be used in this way? Why was <t
T

colleague, the then Secy of State for Defence, not told
that the letter was to be made public? If 1t was s0
important to make the matter public, why was there not a clear
Govt statement of policy rather than the hole~in-the-corner
method used? Is the r h Lady aware thaij if she were living
in the real world outside and this inguiry had been conducted

she would now be ¢n a charge of wasting police time?

LTHE PRIME MINR: The inguiry was set up to establish the

[H ,:'4?5.' }fwﬂ

ME SPEREER: Order.

:.{ﬁn—_u:u U:_'E'_'..n
ETHE PRIME MINR: If I had refused l-qr for an inguiry
S Twecddale, Fhrick and baudarclalke (Ml ecd ) £

the r h ﬁLwould have criticised me, The inguiry established many
facte which were not known to me. The r h G said that S I could

"
have cleared up the matter without an inquiry{ﬁ khat ie not what

he would have gaid had I failed to Jimmmses follow that course.

=




—@®

HHE/HF 3.50 - 3.55pm Q-1

MH. ALEX FIETCHER (Edinburgh, Central): Is my r h F aware
CpCar vakise
that there Bra*!ﬂ_"!}nbars Rttty wnose first
consideration {n this matter is the integrity of Govt?
Ig she satisfied that the statement thet she hes made this

sfternoon hes enhanced the integrity of her Govt?

[EFE PRIME MINR: I have tried, having set up &n inquiry
and received the full report yesterday, to give as full an sccount

ae I poseibly cen, becamuce the Hee deserves to heve it.

{R‘Lﬁ. MICHAEL FCOT &{Hlﬂﬂﬂﬁu Gwent }: Loes the r h Ledy recall
that s week ago, when I asked her about it, she seid that the
inquiry was going ahead}'hut it was not the custom in sny sense

to meke & Teport to the s i she wes not going to do B0

Wher she gave thet aneswer to the Ese and crew B Vell gver the

proceedings, eaying that the inguiry was going Lo proceed, HOE

o ,+| u_-l.l'-

must have known a@ll the fectsp 30 she wes concesling thea
=

!;TDR
the Ese and the country. When will she spologise for thaet?

(,?HE FRIME MINE: No, the r h G is not correct. I did not
know 211 the Iactsganﬂ thaet is why an inguiry wee set up.
It ie not the ususl tradition or custom to give the outcome of
euch inquiries. There have been rsre exceptions when thet has
been the case. One such exception was on 1 July 1976, when the

results of en inquiry were published end 8 etstement made sbout

the disclosure of information regerding child benefit.

When 1 got the result and the report of the inguiry, 1 knew full
well that it would have to be one ¢f the exceptions, when a full

etetenent would have to be made. I heve made such & full

stetement because thet was whet the Hee wanted and required.




.

ME. MICHAEL ﬂ&m COLVIN (Romsey end Waterside): Loes my

r h F esgree that, if we need lessons =R in leaking, we have only
*o read the Crossman and Castle disries, from which we would lesrn

thet previocus Lebour Govie mmme lesked like sieves.

&I—}L FRIME MINE: I think that there would hsve been o
different way had there been more time. H Fes should remember
that there wes & time constraint. It was urgent becsuse of

thet meeting at 4 o'clock thet afterncon.

{_.I"iI:. MERLYK REES (Morley snd Leeds, South): Is the Prime Minr
EWETE that? ags I listene® to and watched this tawdry sage ratlle on,
I no lenger care sbout the reletionshipe between F’Eracle and industr;-.r
Kinye and industrieliste? 1 no longer care whether the mechinery

of Loyt 15 DEINE

=
L
b N o T = = | § - L i S RSP A wmaamE] e e
HOmE DEcTy ﬂ kad set up en inguiry, end people ceme bs

il

and said, "But, Pir, you authorised it"4 1 should have resigned.
-~
L‘I‘I—IE FRIME MINE: No. I heve, in fact, in & long statement,
given the facte, I hope, showing that I was not consulted.

I hope that the r h G will have the decency to sccept that statemen

IE- MICHAEL EEEELTII&;( (Eenley): HIis-y—-l-n-ak—w-:ﬂ—r-._hJ.-th—
ot Pud gk -’m‘taat I said in the letter, which was apparently

ec diffienlt, csused such concern, as it was in the hands of

No. 10 sné the Dept of Trede and Industry on the Fridey aftenncon,
end there wes no protest from colleagues sbout its contents, and
ge the firet thet ] mEe-heerd of concern was late on the Saturday
night, when the Solicitor-General told me that he would be writing

on the Monday, would it not have been possible for colleagues to




Eel el ol _ :
cnﬂsiﬁe?, diﬂEuE?fEnﬂ perhaps even agreﬁfﬁﬁf withdrawal cof snything

in oy letier that wes pisleading? J&eyk —ask a¥ r_,h.ig_-gs
I éid respond to the Solicitor-Generel, end as the text of hie
letter has been published, would it not be now right for the

text of my reply to be publisghed as well?,

" Does the Prime Minr sccept that every word of the letter that
I gent to the European consortium stands uncorrected by any

tetement by this Govt?

R follows




3.55 = 4.00

L ——

[THE PRIME MINISTER: The problem would never have arisen
had p r h F H{Mﬂ}ﬁrﬂﬂ'ﬂrﬁﬁ?&ﬁm eleared
his letter with the Solicitor-Generalgt because it was upon
the basis of that letter that commercial judgi&ants would have
been made. My r h F did not deo that. He knew full well that
I had cleared every word of my letter because it was thought that

or meberel to |

it might be included in[the prcspectusﬂmw

iad m r h F cleared his letter, this problem would never kete

have srisen.

[PH ¥ DAVID OWEX (Flymouth, Ihevnnpm*t}: o Will the

g
Prime HiﬂisterI¥:11 the House when her office told her that

it had given cover to the Becry of State's office to reveal

the letter? & Did that happen on & or 7 January? # When did

that happen;and why did she not esmeess® tell the House as soo0n
her

as she knew that Bgr office had been involved 1in the leak?

How ean the Prime Minister continue to hold the high office

that she does when she constituted a leak inguiry in the full

knowledge that her office and by implication she hﬂrﬁelf,ﬂﬂﬁ

)

fully inveolved in this whole sordid affair?




iTI—E:‘. PRIME MINISTER: I do not think that the r h G
has fully taken into account every single thing in my statement.
The inquiry was set up to establish the faecte. An enormous
o i B 'ﬁn.nua'-“j,"" |

number of the facts were not known to me until yuaterdajlwhen I

received the resulte of the inguirys

MLt by

[’m-; CRANLEY ONSLOW (Weking): My r h F the—Emime—jitrremes
hmy on Ao Gposivon Bncten,
will be aware that many T h and hAGppecitRemmembens Jeiie
gl h 0§
like the Hehtch Ak far E*'-‘__;:m:r.lth, Devonport (Dr t'f'w{--::i? ubho hoh—-

e :-t'{rjplafjﬂ:gﬂpc- 1¢ 8re not really interested in listening to tne
facts of the full ¥mg sccountqd given by x my r b F. What view
does a r h F think the House might have taken of any Minister

in any Govt placed in such an invidious situation by the action of
a cn‘lleng:?uhn hed failed in his duty to ensure that correct

information was made public as soon as possible?

L"."HF. PRIME MINISTER: Yes, Mr. Speaker, it would have beec

much easier, ats the facts were commercially sens.itivejif the

relevent letters had been cleared as mine was with the Spiftéider

Saliciterm Thuosey uibel 4o haoe u-::,uml.-e,mbu-nhan m-hz fublic tlommon |
e e

General. m{bacause we knew that judﬁﬁments !




ﬂ'l.l:FJ':
upon ¥hen and that the Govt could be liable 1T wrong judgments

were made as & result of misleading infc-matinnﬂmﬂiwﬂ
viial podmres pteurpke intprastiar ¥ thepuplicdumein.

It was to get that accurate information to the public domain
that 1 gave my consent.

&

LI*LH JACK DORMAND (Easington): The FPrime Minister said

£
that &s ?Hn open decision taken by e 10 to release the letter

+o the Press Associstion. Did the Prime Minister see

Mancrit b " .
Mr. Chris ottarieff on the 9 o'clock news on WEleva television

Moncrit
last night? Mr. Méfit¢riedf said that there was no way in which

alioct il 80 LS
he would reveal any details about that letter, whsciE.Seme& <rom

e Crns il Kaebe

erwhere from. Is/the h/B.ut aware that Mix there is

no more honourable a member of the ﬁ*esﬂ- @llerj than
o

Moanc st dd I"“Dn:.:.t-Hr
Mr. ﬂ'q;ﬂ:g:m&a;ff Why should Mr Nohid#fieff say those words in

foakrepligBan 1o
campatition with what the Prime Minister has told the House

this efternoon?




R4
THE PRIME MINISTER: 1 do not believe that there is

a contradiction. I have set out the full fects &5 & result of

AL )
the inquirye 1 have Set them out extremely carefully and

accurately. I hope that the h G will coneider them with the

came care that I have given to megesfich expressing them.

LS
LHR NICHOLAS FAIRBAIEN ( Ferth and Kinross): Does BT

F mmmxatw appreciate that this is probably the House
e B

of Commnne st its werae worst when politieal parties uk:;a hope Lo
abtain power En¢ tai anbfitay snd destroy the prosperity that

the Govt have c:r-eated/ wish to meke bogus points pretending that
3 el
they are matters of principle. E.h{:u'ld/'thas.e parties ML o sal

consult their cﬁnﬂcianuaéa

&H‘E FRIME MINISTER: repeat that the report of the

Ly
inquiry was submitted to me 22 Januamﬁ?’the basis of the

L T
report of that inguiry most of the facts in which were m

me, 1 have faithfully reported to the House.

(o orzomd

\ & follow




ROY JEIEINS (Glasgow, Eillhea Is the Ht Fon Le
aware that ae Bb 3 he i

asY
u

s T inte the bog of
L4 . : ﬂﬁﬁlfipﬁlli

JIES ¥ N-ininE eBmeRsbly. words

i, i
commereiagl dec i ] 1 i

chicanery

'.--rnﬁlthﬁ'
Lo

Tt honlssys, but when

FEFY T

T = I 1
Ll & b

otalfordshir wWben the Secy

.+
Trade and Industry eddressed ﬁﬁﬁf Hse at
he knoe : ¥ ] guthorised the '
{LE- FEIME MTIISTHE

Sy
g 18 P L e

ATYELL{Linlithgow):
) LA
i =

her whet thes had
,

an acoountc -

inguiry thet

E I establishsd

1 Dhsve that

g0

COustTIY , Which

differ not one jot g from the regular prsctice of Labour

e N ¥ i T R
“smhers when they were in @Bovt? Wi

ill ghe teke it from me




'I: -Il'| :
er gnd oriticisn ff?E thes Cons

g to thes wey in which 3

into

"l. 'I'_rl'

LAl el i

T S =

on—-attribution.

alus™
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ASHTON(Bassetlaw): As it is obvious that the

pde was concelwed to get rid of 't hon Hu:b&r

whole episo 8

" r e B b’ L o,
T nen?ag,{.?. Heseltine), whose J filled within #e (T

ke
LB 01T+

(Hslesowe r.i and £
in my

%
: ,
S Rh b ks T il - 1 - R A . -
nuzb=r of - [}nterruption] -

. e | i i | = |
OeOvion Wesviand To me:
LA A

n&t-m%ei%i one latf

been blown up by the
R e B
short of
\

- - prT T = —— = PR T = .
FRAIME MINIETER: I hes=d two thirds of whset mw

pereed with it wholly.

grvellous. X
[ ol
=

LFTTTRT Py T Y .
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y L2 dd




i -
aonoul ¢




S
N b b
R TE:




!_DE EEITE HAMPSON (Leeds, North=-West) : Ismy  h F aware

-

Wi
that e.:].’tiLn-dzers would prefer accurate information to be placedg

'l--l n
gs5-=feeXgretgetd, in the public domain. The information had to
= = -

& P i = J b
be accurate for the shareholers of Westland., Surelydkc-would s
+

Selicitor=-General’ letter to—tes=igamres oo t0 do the most

#ﬁh %F1ﬁqr—!_it£ﬂ==-ﬂh ﬂh' AJ bei
T T i e et e T i delay 80 tha
Iy T 3

R [ B l -

for Henley, Eﬁ-ﬂiﬂr—hﬂﬁ—mm, lizs‘ém—‘ﬁjl

L

accepted by e Solicitor=General < the evidence whieh
P

—

(the Solicitor-General had askedlfﬂi'z could rimn alsc

released 8o that the shareholders could make a proper

| that

{ TEE PRIME MINE: I think;it is essential to get intd
the public domain the fact that there were possible inaccuracies

which were relevant to that situation. I accept at once that

|.||' ;"'"‘" '—ll-"hl.-"a- or
it would have besn hetter ﬁ{ a Ltaterr.e.-._\"'.‘_@q:ﬂe made ERE

|
_:-_|u_|.|: ™ i)

Jnfnrmﬂtznrt?a pased in

1




J ]
:
. e —

{_MR DICK DODUGLAS ({Dunfermline, West): he Prime Minr

has given us certain detailed information as to the factual

acocuracy of what happened. Can the Prime Minr help me as I am

-;_.ﬂ-e"'

]
a layman and nct & lawyer, As I understand it the Solicitor-

o

General's exMpertise is in legal matters. What wital legal

3

consideration was at stake on this issue! amd ﬁlﬂ the Solicitor-

of

General know that his letrer

|
: THE FRIME MIKE: In the letter which I guoted, and which

[

the h G krniowe has been released fully into the public domsing

the Solicitor-General said in respect of what my r h F the then

Secy of State for Defence had written:

: "It is foreseeable that youpletter will

|
‘ be relied upon by the Westland Board and its

shareholders.

"Consistently with the advice I gave to the
Prime Minister on 31 December, the Govt in
such clrcumstances is upder a duty not to give

information which 15 omp.d inaccurate

in any mataris




|
KHF D ¥ CAMPEELL-SAVOURS (Workington):

i oo
O TR T é‘t"\i.

Prime Minr aware that whunlthw_;g people of Britain Im—fedwro
I

L

examine these days, they will say that the Prime Minr did not
tell the truth, Ie the Prime Minr aware that in T&== 1AL 5

the Hse that he had deliberately

Lo
be in contempt and he admitted his

DPoes the Prime Minr not accept that this matter

b b S
best dealt with by the Cttee of Privileges whe—are in a position

to find out the mature of the contempt that has taken place?

L_EEE PRIME MINR: I totally reject and resent the h G's
assumptlion.

. NORMAN ST JOHN-STEVAS (Chelmsford): Is the Prime
fault

Minr aware that whatever the =heoaghies of the Govt in handling
|

this situation/and there have been grave fﬂul‘v.-_E.J'i nothing jJustifies

fia 1! e thood
the farrago,, hypocrisy g#c humbug ang, cant wiieh we have had to

£ .-/"# IIIE .!:.:_.Ilrl-:-'|- i
endure from r© h and h h::-p.p-asur'“ Py,




|
[ THE PRIME MINEK: I am grateful tomy r h F. Throughout,

-."-«’I!.ﬁ-: ':a,. Ii,q:,; s Kag

thought it arbslodelyn vital that as Westland$ bese the cholce

AR
thevy should be able to make that cheoice on the basis of BCCUTAtE

and not misleading information. That will continue to be our
i

DAVIE LE‘IIL’L]']L_T yam, Hodge Hill): Does the
Frime Minr think ki should need an inguiry for her to
had been authorised by & member of

/ THE PRIME MINE: Had I attenmpted not to have arn inguiry
|

Wl
N i i

i § 3
s | P Il.r 1 .* L, .\_.lr';. 11 .'_U.--. .| Hoala J'-' l-’: I.‘IFJ_IF-' :|:.

and bas i w-i-i-—l_ﬂzt..l—.l.ntesﬂal R —— = - E-’E'-pﬁﬁ::t,E
i A W

=T L. 5= Tremalia

¢ wonld have been the first to criticise.

L MR DOUGLAS HOGG (Grantham): Does my r h F accept that

the general judgment will be that we have had a candid speech,

1t was clearly in the national inter :t and in the interest of

-

the company the information should have been discussed.

All we are talking about is the manner of the disclosure

is an essentially trivial and minor matter. [ puel

also accept that the electorate will not easily forget




T2
those wWhpo kmy¥ex perpetuate this matter out of narrow, personal
pelitical interest?
PRIME MINE: I am grataful to my h F. I only
et eAdscdoyein

wish the manner of the diseeysry had been

different and more orthodox.

MR NIGEL SPERRING {Wewham, Scuth) The Prime Minr has
that the S5ecy of State for Trade and Industry
authorised what ghe called "material elements” in the Solicitor-
4

General's lettar and not the whole latter. The Prime Minr said

i .F':
) 4 i / hi ftig
that this was covered by Downing Street. Cam the .Pri T

tell the Hse to whom Mr Ingham is accountable and who decides
his Standing frders?

thepaiy

|
l THE PRIME g carefully at the statemsnt
r
and I ask the h C to look carefully at the statement to see what
wae agreed and what was accepted. It waes drafted absolutely in
Pzl o

accordance with the received. I woold like to savy that

Mr Wi Ingham has served successive Govts with feddit- devotion

3 A . I‘ i c - !.*HIL
dedication; = - o= S R




dedicaticon, and I Em Wi ¢1F*h* Evmg ALl o= Puad

)

t; ; hf F

ME JEREY WIGGIN ([(Weston-super-Mare): B e~ =l

M g !
did mot mention this in her =tatement but aad we take it that

CHaim
the writer of the letter, the Seliciteor-Gencral, dt—sdve his

approval in advance that part of the letter should be

selectively

No, Bir, and I deeply regret that

| ‘ME TONY BANES ([Newham,; Horth-West): The Prime Minr

R

gaid that the feels that the information in the letter

4 have been made public in other ways than through a leak.

LH

the Prime Minr say/ what ways it ghould have been given to
h

THE PRIME MIMR: It 1s now a hypothetical guestion.

The alternative way would have been to make a2 straight statement.

Lot

knows things &P Lot easy

et
concerned] I say again I was not consulted| were up against a
[ |- IFd

severe time constraint as I said in the statement.




=

lHE PATRICK NICHOLLS (Teignbridge): Doee my r h F find it

remarkable that the Oppositioms indignation con the question of

i

leaks is sBelective. Hh}{fﬂz instance; do we not hear about

olag IU.'-: .
Lhcilﬂihzﬂffkﬂﬁliﬂfbﬂf_ET_;TI—ﬂH?mEﬂﬂ—L?Eﬂf of Sir Raymond

fJLxuﬂL.finﬁ gli;{ffm: I

—

Lyack's letter to my r h F the M for

b

amounts to the fact that if a lemk will damage the Govi the

Opposition will highlight it and if it does
r

they will ignore it completely.

{ THE PRIME MINR: I am grateful to my h F. I repeat

s

(e

again;I believe it was right not to have potentially misleading

information at a time when important commercial decisions were

f
about to be taken which involver the future of a particular

{ ME GECRGE FOULEES (Carrick, Cummock and Doon Valley):

3 —

Will the Prime Minr give the Hse an essurance now that when

ot " the details as she describes them she will
1
&

g ¥
he Hse exfactly when she was told of her officers

involvement in the disclosure?




[
l THE PRIME MIKR: 1 set up an inguiry to find out the

o =

facte. T discOovered mOEt Of the -facts when the inguiry ‘had

been reported.

i i i
i Liag el Lgams "L d

| SIE PETER HORDERN [Horsham): ("For many yedré p&:;ﬁ,the
S

people who stand in the greatest denger in thie place are Lubb?

s,

journalists. They risk being run over, tripped up by Cabinet
AT

I

b;LiEtcré arid othere trying to tell them secrets. Of COUrse, it

1
l'.-\_n.*.:.

would have been better to kawe—madge an open sStatement at the

time, Dut we are making too much fuss about a tiny company -

about the size of a moderate hotel in Sorth London. It is time #./

we got on with some proper business.

|l
Lo /! "":':T-_

‘!:-:'L |

. i - ; ol sl
| THE PRIME MINR: A5 I uaﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁgﬂc it we htve a clear duty

to see that accurate and not misleading information was put into
the public domain at the time. F?I'Earrleﬁ out that duty

ki
G,
b=t his Judg ! tting it into the public

I did not like the wav in which it




T.9

i

| MR NEIL KIRNOCKE (Islwyn]): On a point of &rder,

%,
;=

Mr Speaker.

T

Becauge o he wholly unsatisfactory and unconvincing

nature of the Prime Mi ; statement and replie

afternoon_ g§&
]

of the Ese under Standing




LEAE IRQUIRY: CHRONOLOGY

Monday & January Disclosure took place

Tuesday 7 January Alan Williams; M.P.;,; Labour Spokesman
on Trade and Industry, writes to PM

asking for a formal leak inguiry.

7o informed that disclosure not from
Mo. 10 that there had been contacts
betwean Mo. 10 and DTI.

Steel (AG's office) writes to RTA
gegaking opinion on possibility of

leak inguiry.

?FPirst discussions of possibility of

leak inguiry.

Wednegday B January NLW informed that Mr. Brittan does

not want a8 formal inguiry and PM

informed,
RTA makes "preliminary™ enguiries of
his ownj; concludes no purpose in his

continuing further.

Friday 10 January At his reguest, AG seess RTA to say

that there had, in his view, to be a

leak inguirv.

ETA reports AG's views and tenders
formal advies to PM that therse shonld
be a leak inguiryy informs PM that
he will be prepared to ask AGC for
grant of immunity if necessary.




Tuasday 14 January

Thursday l& January

Tuesday 21 January

Wednesday 22 January

Thursday 23 January

BMZACL

PM announces that an inguiry has been
instituted.

PM tells Alan Williams that the

outcome of leak inguiries is not

normally dizclosed; repeats this to

Michael Foot.

Rumours in Parliament that leak
inquiry has named a DTI official as
responaible; rumours referred to in
Parliament.

Inquiry report delivered.

Opposition demands a statement.

PM's statement




Westiena i

Woestland plc

3.3] pm

The FPrime Minister (Mrs. Margaret Thatcher):
Wiith Tﬂr!ﬂ]':iki-:'\lr__ wr, Speaker, | wish o make g siacemeni
om the dutcoms of the inguicy into the disclosure of cemaln
information in my hon. and lewmed Frend the Solicition-
Ceeneral’s letter of & January,

As the House knonws, the chalirmon of Westlond ple, Sir
John Cuckoey, wrote 1o me on M) December 1985 asking
whether Westland would no looger be considered a
bBirapean company by the Csovesmment i & manerity
sharebiolding in the company were beld by & major
iniermoiioni] group fom s NATC couniry catside Europe

[his guestiom was of fundamental importance o the
company mnomaking i3 decislon as 1w what cousse it was
best 1o follow in the interesis of the company and s
:r[pl-._:-:.-.:-,n. le s themelone essentanl o be sire thal my
-.'¢|1=_;..' shomild be 1o wily maskeading Hanyvone who might
rely upon it inm omaking commercial judgments and
decisions

The reply was sccordingly considered among the
Depanments concermned, and the text of my leter of |
Tanuary 1984 was agreed in derail by oy dght hon, and
learned Friemd the Seceetary of State for Trade and
Indusiry, my ght hon, Friends the then Secretary of State
for Defence and the Chief Secretary 10 the Treasury, and
fimally by my hon, and legmed Friend the Seliciior-
Genzral. My letrer was made pablic

Two days later, on 3 Janaary, my right hon. Friend the
then Secretary of Swate for Deferce eplied 1o-a leticr of
the same date oo M. Home of Llowds Mercham Bank
asking him o number of gquestions, covering some of the
sume ground os my osm reply o Sir John Cuckney. The
texts of the leters becnme pablic that same day

My riglht bop. Frend's teply was not cledred or even
discussed with the nelevant Cabiner calleagues. Maoreover,
although the reply was alsd material o the commercial
judgments and decisions thot would have 10 be made, my
hon. uned leirmed Froend he Solicios-Cieneral was ool
invited o sérutinise the letier belore it wiks issued,

On the moming of & Janeary, my bon. and Eamed
Fricnd the SBalicitor-Ceeneral wrote 1o my right hon, Friend
the then Secretary of Siate for Defence. He soid—and |
Ll

“Ir is foresseable that yaur lemes will Be relied npon by the
Wesiland Buand wnd 5is sharebolders,

Constsrently with the advics | geve 1o the Prime Minisser on
31 December, the Government in spch ciroumstences 15 ander a
dwy oot (o give miormation which (s incoaeplesg or inaccurane
in noy m=lerial perticular,™
The [etter continued:

“Un the basis of the Informaiion cominmed in the documests
o owhaeh | beve referred, whach [ emphasise are all that 1 have
segn, the semenes in polr lernes i Mr, Home does in my r!-_:lin'.-:'l:n
captuzn mastecial inscCumeset in 1be mepects L Dave meoiernsd,
antd [ therefiare muost adviss that yoie should Wrie agsin 1w Ve
Horng cormecting the isbcoumeaes.”

That is the ead of the quotation,

[ bawg qjieved extensively fram the lemer which, as hon,
Members will know', was published 8 week apo. As [ lave
already  indicoted, it was especinlly Imporant in chis
sitpotion  for stuements made om behalf of the
Gowermment, on which commerncial judgments gl be
hased, to be accurale and in Do Wiy misleading

[har being 20, I way o maver of dwty thar it shoold be
made known publicly thar there wers thought w be

hE
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Westlend mle wiil
miderin] mEaccuracies which pesdead (o be correcied i the
fetier of my nght bon, Foemd. the Member tof Henley
iMr. Heseltine) of 3 JTunuary, which, s the Houss will
recall . hed alresdy been made public. Morecover, it was
argent that it should become public knowledge before 4
pro that afternoon, & Janusry, when Bir Joha Cockney was
due 1o hold a press conference to anpounce the Westland
board s meeommendation o shareholders of 8 revised
provpsal (e the United Techonodogies Corposarion-Fist
GO,

hese conspberalioms wepe viary pauchi i the mund |.'|-|-u!|_'.-
right hon. and learned Friend the Secrelary of Stae foe
Trade and Industry when the copy of the Solicitor
General’s letier was brought 1o his attention ot aboot 130
pria-that afterncon of 6 Januwary. He took the view that the
fect that the Solichor-Gepernl had written o the then
Secretary of Sate for Lefence, and the |'||_:I-.'I'|':~:'II'| he had
ﬂxmﬁﬁﬁi. afioanld be browghl mio the |J|.'|:l|il." dioraain g
soon s possible, e asked his officials i diacuss with my
oftice whetber the disclosure slould be msda, and, if 50,
whither it should be made from [0 Downing streel, 4 he
cakd het would prefer

He made it clear that, subiect o the agreement of my
affice. be was miving suthoriry for the disclosure to be
riade from the Daparment of Trade and Industry, if it wis
it made froim 10 Downing sreel. He expressed oo view
as 1o Uhe forem in which the disclosure should be made,
though it was cleas 1o all concerned that in the
circumslanies i was nnl possible o procesd by way of an
npreed salemeni

My office were accondingly approwchied, They did ol
sesk my sareement: they considersd —and they wemne
right—that | should agree with my right hoa. Froend the
Secretusy of State [or Trade and Industry that the fact that
the then Defepce Secretany's beter of 3 January was
thowight by the Solicnor-Gieneral o comtain  matsrial
insccurmcies which nesded o be cormecied shonld become
pub]ir HJ'.I{W-'i.I:dJ_.'.:! B3 5000 B85 wathle, and before Sir John
Cucknzy's press conference. It was sccepind that the
Depariment of Trade and Industry should disclose that fact
and that, in view of the urgency of the matter, the
disclosure should be made by means of 0 telephone
commupication o the Press Association. [faterruption. |
Had [ been consulied. I shoold have zaid that o differed
way st be found of making the relevant facts Enown.

The repart finds, in the light of the evidence that thel
Deportment of Trade and Industry scted in pood faith in
the knowledge that it had the authoriry of its Secretary of
State and cover from my office for procesding, An official
of the Depamment accordingly’ told o representative of the
Press Asuociation of the letter by my bhon. and Jearmed
Fraemx! the Solicitor-General apd mmerial elements of whad
it said. The company was also informed. The information
was on the Press Association tupes a1 3,30 pm.

My right hon. and learned Friend the Secretary of Siame
fior Trade amd Indosity was, in my judgment, Tight n
thinking that it was important that the possible exisience
of material inpccuracies in the letter of 3 Japussy by the
theit Secretary of State for Defence should becooss 8
matier of public knowledoe, if posible before Sir John
Cuckney's press conference af 4 pm that day. Insofar as
what my office said to the Department of Trade and
Industry wias based on the beliel that | should have taken
that view, had [ been consulied, it was Tight

My right hop, and learned Friend the Anormey-General
has authorised me o inform the Hoose that, having

\




Oral Answers

priddle east? Will she try o make him undeitansd that, i
he s il ue the modermie influence of choirman Acafat,
e, OT & sucCesgor, will have o fece a much less
moderute and more rudical lesdership of the Polestiniane?

The Prime Minister: The hon. Gentleman knows the

position, and it bas not changed. Mr. Peres is in fevour of

diregt  pegotintions - befween Israz]l an the Jondanian-
Polestinian delegation within the fremework of an
intermatioral conferance_ 1 do not think thae thers ie any
question of acceging the PLOY witi] it accepls resclutbons
242 pnd 388, rencunces violence, and accepts (he right of
Tarael o exist,

5. Dame JUll Knkght asked the Prime Mindster 1 she
will k= her of Acksl engagements for | nmsday 13 January.

The Prime Minister: 1 refer my hon, Iriend to the
regdy thot [ gave some moments ago

Drame Jill Knight: Is my right hon, Friend aware that
there i3 much inferest in the talks that she had yesterdsy
with Mr. Peres, in which one would hope thas she did nio
gdopt the belligesent swdmode of the hon. Member for
Warley, East (Mr. Faolds)? 1s sha able to wll the Hodse
of any advance made or of any solutions pul forward 0
regasd m e middle east sdfarion?

I'he Prime Minister: | am afmaid tat L canaot suddenly
Cogne oul with new salulions. Qe knows (s perticalar
aspect-of world politics’ very well and the difficulty of
finding « lastmg soletion which will give pence nnd
security o all swles in the regson. The talks which I had
with Mr, Perés wene nol ooly enojoyabls but very

nteresting ind constractive. T hope to wisit Ismel lator this

VERIF
. Mrs, Clwyrd asked the Pricie Minister if she will
st her official engagements for Thursday 23 Jamsary
e Prime Minkster: | reler the hon | .||:!_-.-' in the meply
that T gave some maments ago.

Mirs, Clwyd: Does the Prime Ministes think that he
cument plecing in the opinkon polls is o refiection of the
wiy that people fieel about the way she mins the cowntry?

The Prime Mindsters [ think, that there s onaly one
unswer to thar—une. [ hope thar we shall go fopsasd o
the mext election amd win (or e ] e with an @ven
larger pajordiy

7, Mr. Evennett asked the Prime Mmster if she will
izt her ofncial engagements lor Thimsday 23 I,I,,1|'||l:|;|':..'

The Prime Minkder: | refer my hon. Friend to the
reply that I gave some moments ago
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Mr. Evenoetl: Despiie the receént poessures on the
sterling exchange rate, will my right hon, Friend reaffirm
her commitment ©o lower inkerese rates inthe long erm and
lower income tax for the people of this coungry? Wl she
o totally the Opposition Foost Bench wiese economic
policy would bring this country (o absodute rukn?

The Prime Minister: [ gladly suppor the last aspect
of my hon, Froend's gqoestion. We would all Hke bower
interest rates, bt thers are other things. like the level of
inflatbon, af which we have to baok as well ' We would all
like fower taxes, and thal means being very carcfal in
budgeting for public expenditure. With regird to keeping
industry competitive, it is absolutely vital that sy wage
imereases shcold po hand n hand  anch '|'.-;r.1|!|.=;;|:1'.'i,1_l,-
I T

Mr. Pavitt; Will the Prime Minister find time o
discuss with the Minisber [or Heelth the coipclysmic drop
i mrrale of nurses as the mesel of the imphcations of the
CGriffiths repon™ 1s she aware that the disillusion of norsing
officers 8 crealmg a crisks in the Health Service? Will she
miset representatives of the Roval Collese of Mursing at the
earliest opportunin?

The Prime Minister: As [ said during Question Times
on Tuesday, I visited a large hospital last Friday. [ did pot
find the siteation as the hon. Gentleman repores it 1 fiowmd
aond mogabe, apd some nurses have the apporunity o
apply for the jobs of managers.

Q& Mr. Stanbrook ssked the Prime Minister if she
will list her official engagememnts for Thiersday X3 Tanoary.

The Prime Mindster: | refer my hon. Friend o the
reply Eal | pave sorne mmeents mpn

Mr. Stanbrook: The two best things about the Chanreld
tunnel project are thit thowsands of johs——

Mr. Speaker: Order. The hoo, Gentleman must ask o
quiEstied,

Mr. Stanhrook: | am abouz 1o ask my question, Mr.
Speaker. The two good things are the thousunds of jobs
thut i will cresiE and the fact thod it will involve o
expendifure of pubbc fends. Will my rght hon. Friend
now look wround and find similar projecis for the
application of thase two principles?

The Prime Minkster: My hon, Fricod puts his finges
on b most imporant point. Six and a8 kel years ago B
woold hawe been unthinkable thar we coold agree o
Channel tunme] scheme and have it privately funded. Tt is
enormonsly exciting thas we have dome so, sl we Lol
losak mound for other similae propects




. Westland ple
considered the report by the head of the Civil Service, nnd
on the muterinl before him, he hns' decided afier
consultntion with, end with the full zgreement of, the
Director -of Public Prosecotions and  semior  Treasury
coiansel, thor thers is no justification for the instudon of
privceedings under the Official Secrets Act 191 | in respect
ol any of the persons conceenad in this matter,

In order that there shotkE e oo 'r||'||tr:|.||||;re;'1|. T gL
aperation i the ngquiry, my night hon, and leamed Friend
had authorised the bead of the Civil Service to t2ll one of
thie officinls concemed, whoss testimony would be vital o
the mequiry, that he had my dght hon. and leamed Priend s
autharty o say that, provided that he recerved hefl co-
operation in his ingoiry. the official concerned would no
b= pln.‘\.tc“l_'rtd 11 P25 pecl ol :|:|1_,-:,|:|;|:15_' salal l.ll.-ll'iilj.' the course
of the Ingairy,

The head of the Civil Service did, indeed, receive full
co-operifion not only from thot official but froun all
concernsd, My fight hon, and lenrned Friend tells me that
he 15 satisfied that that in oo way inferdfered with the course
of justice; of the facts as disclosed inthe inguimy there
woulld bave been no goestion of peoceeding against the
oiEcial concemed,

Mr. Neil Kinnock (Islwynk: Afler persistent effors,
we have managed 1o pull & satement from the right hon,
Lady, Ir had a detail produced not by frankness but by paile
—uperasable peilt, That stain will sy with the right
hoo. Lady for s long as she enduscs in politics. Her
excoses are completely implaugible. She cannot justify or
excuse the conduct of her Government in any one respest

In this squalid siory, we have been ald that the feaking
of the Soliciioe-General's letter was authorised —
anthorised by the right hon. Lady’s office and connived in
by her office, all, says the Prime Mimster, with hes
subsequent edorsement. We must ask the Prime Minister,
especially given her personnlised and centralised soyle of
povernment, where she was on 6 January so that sle coulbd
ot he contacted on g matter 85 basic and easential 8 this,
Sbe has a duty to 1ell the House what she was doing when
her office, as she says, was getting on with the buziness
By itself.

We have beer told tha the motter was authorised, What
was actaally authorised was g copspiracy by people in the
Depirtment of Trade and Industry and people fram the
right hon, Lady’s office to disclose cemaln parns of a beter
writien by a Law Officer o dmsther member of the Cabinet
about & mattes of imporiant public business. That was their
way, we are told, of putting it into the public domain. That
was the roule chosen—not by open meens, bup by
subtetitpe and dishopes? means,

We hove been told that there wes-an inquiry. [ndeed,
thers. have been apswers in the Houwse from Ministers,
meluding the Prme Minister, saying that an eamesi
inquity was being underiaken in the normal fashion. We
have 10 ask: why was (here an inguiry when everybody
kpew whoit had happened’ Why wad there an inguiry when
everybody kacw that there would be po prosecution
because the dispensation hod been given? The only
precedent comperiale with this act of contrived insincerity
i the way in which Mocheth so fiercely looked around for
Dlubcan s murderers.

Wi hear from the Prime Ministar thid an immanity was
oifered. Why was that the cose when it was plain that there
Wils 10 be [0 prosecution?

ki
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We hove heard o shabby sfory—an effort o defrawd
the public: The fact is that the Preime Minister, the
Secretuey of State for Trade and Industey aimd evervone else
inverlved would have got away with it were it not for the
fact that in this democracy ulimarely che Prime Miniser
fad o anake & sistement. They would bave deall with the
former Membes of the Cabinel, the Secretary of State for
Defence, not by the means availuble to the Prime Minister,
if she believed that he was acting contrary to the national
inferest—aos by sacking him—but by trying dishonestly
and coverntly to subvert b, That 5 & poofound dishomesty
For the Covermment 10 leak noonder o inform smd
influgnee public opinin 18 normml. For o Government o
fzak in onder to discredit anvone iz shametnl. For a
Covernment tov leak in order to subvert a mermber of that
Government is the sction of 8 Goverrmeant who ace rotten
noE just to the core but from the cope, and they should go

The Prime Minister: | totally relect much of whai the
nght hon.  Gentleman saad, A% he has seen ffom the
solicier-Geneml’s letter, the Govermment had a daty 1o
give mocuraie infommation and pot te give 2oy misleading
information becaus=e that information could be used o
maoke commercial judpments, Becanse there was a
possible 1naccuracy, it was important o et accurste
information ingo the public domain in gme for the mecting
at 4 o'clock. T agree, as | have said, that it shoald have
boen done by g maore correct methed, The fscr isthan [ was
pol copsulied, as | indicated [0 the stement, Yes, [ did
institile an inguiry and the dght bon. Gentleman would
have been the frst po castipoe me i [ did not
finterrupiion. |

Mr. Speaker: Order. The Leader of the Opposition
was heaed in gilepce, The Prime Minister deserves o fair
Neating.

The Prime Minister: [ instituted an inguiry, It staed
on 14 lanaary. | institated that inguiny to find the full facts
because they were not known. The Inguiry reported on 22
Japuary and 1 have made a foll sstement oday, 23

Jaruary.

Sir Edward Gardper (Fylde): Dees my right hom,
Friend the Prime Miniseer agres that if, as appears to be
the caze, my-right hon. and learned Friend the Secratary
of Seate for Trade and Industry had been aware, or been
macle dwnre, of what he bébeved bo hoave besn the
mislewfing  information which could bhave seriously
damaged the fumure of Westland, woald there not have
been an overriding and [mperative duty o correct tha
rn1:-:|r_'a.il.i11:5 wlormalion 1o poilect Westland From firthers
dismage ol that i be hod oot fulfiled that duty be would
hive been failing in his duty ns Secrstary of Smbe?

The Prime Minister: [ believe thot my bon. and
kamed Frend's amalysis 5 the oorect one. The
Government had a duty o sce that oo misleading
statements wens made. Therefore, possible Inbccuracics
had o come into the public domain & the relevent time
becanse commercial udgments were about e be taken

Mr. David Steel (Tweeddale. Enrick and Lauderdale]
Is the Primie Miniseer aware that her statement revenls yet
ancther chapter of shabby and asonishing behaviour o the
higher reaches of her Government? Does she recogniss
thar she owes the House and the Civil Service oo apology 7
She allowed nine |I||¢:.n. ! & chornde of an |:'||:|IJ':F'__.' when she
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TMr, avid Sieell

could kave cleared up the matier in 10 minates by calfing
in her colicague, the Secretary of State for Tosds wmd
Industry and her own press officer.

Why was the Soliciior-General not told that his letier
wis b0 e used inthis way? Why was the right bon. Lady s
callcague, the then Seoreary of State for Defence, not told
that the latber was to be made public? If it was so impoctant
to rauke e maies public. why was there not a-clens
Cinvermment stalement of policy rather than the hole-in-
the-comer method used? [s the sight bon. Lady aware that,
il she were living in the real world outside and this inguiry
had been condected. she would now be on & charge of
wisting police tims?

The Prime Mindster: The inquiry wsas set op to
establish the facts-

Hom Members: You know,

Mr. Speaker: Crder.

The Prime Minister: [ | had refused demands for an
i|||.|u]|'_l.'. Lhe rihl . Meoaber fof Tweeddale, Ertnck and
Lauderdale (Mr. Steel) would have ccitheiscd me. The
mguiry established many facts which were o known (o
me, The right hon. Gentleman said that T coubd have
clenred up thie rmsifter withot an 'i"||.|'.|'ir_'.-. That 1% ml: whar
be would bave said bod T failed o lallow tht eousss

Mr. Alex Fleicher (Edinburgh, Cenwall; Is my right
hom, Fremd aware thar there ae Conservative Members
whese [t considerstion in this maitter is the mtegrity of
Covernment? [5 she satisfied that the satemen thal she
bas made this affemoon has enhanced the inte gty of her
Govemment?

Ihe Prime Minister: | have roed, having sof op an
maquiry and received ihe foll reporn yesterday, m glve as
full an wecount as 1 possibly cin, becasse the House
deserves to have it.

Mr. Michael Foot (Blacnae Gowent): Does the nght
hien. Lady recall that a week apo, when | asked her abois
it, she said that the inguiry was going ahead bat it was ot
ihe custom in any s&nse i nake a report to the Hoose, and
she was not going to do ot When she gave thai answer
i e House gl drese g vell over the beii H:L'rl.'lli:llg:'i-. .ie.:..'iug
that the inquiry was poing to proceed, she mist have
kntrwn all the facts. S0 she was concealing the truth from
the House and the couniry, When will she apolog:ss [or
that?

The Frime Minister: No, the right hon, Gentloman is
mot corect, [ did not konow all the Gecrs, and et 15 why
un iogpuiny wits setup. [ is ool the usupl radition ot ciesiom
to give the outcorme of such inguiries. There have been rne
éaxceptinns whin that has been the ease. One soch
exception was on 1 July 1976, when the resuliz of an
imgpuiry were published and a starement made abouat the
disclosine of information regarding child benefit, When |
ot the result and the repon of the inguiry, | kbew fiall well
thit 1t weoald Bave b be one of the excepdions, when a Tull
sinterent wodld have to be made. T have made sach a full
smiment bocause that was whot the House wonted wnd
required.

Mr. Michael Colvin (Romsey and Waterside): Does
my right hon. Friend agree that. if we nesd jedsons in

T
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leakang, we have ooly o read the Crossman end Casrle
dizries, from shich we would leam that previons Laboos
Ciovernments leaked lke sievag?

The Prime Minlster: | think that there wioald have
been & difforent way had there been more time. Hoa
Members should remember that there wns a Gme
consroint. It was wrgent because of fhat mesticg at 4
o' clock that aftermoon.

Mr. Merlyn Hees (Mordey apd Leeds, South)y: 1s ihe
Prirne Miniscer awere that, as 1 Iisten @ and wobch fhis
tawidiy saga ganle on, [ o Jonger care abour the
relatiorships bepween Trade and Todosiry Ministers and
industrindists? 1 no lenger care whether the machinery of
CGovernment 15 being run progerty. All thar T know s that
if as Home ._*i.r:,m.gr:,-l [ bincl sed L in ingukry, &mid peopie
came beck and said, “But, sic, You authorised i, [ shoald
havwer rosipied.

The Prime Minkster: Mo, [ have, in foct, in o long
gtatement, given the facts, 1 hope, showdng thit I was not
coosuled. I hope thai the dght hon. Gentieman will bave
ihe decency o accept thar stabement.

Mr., Michael Heseltine (Henley): 18 what 1 said in the
lstier, which was gpparently so difficult, cawsed @ech
concerty, &% 1 wag in the hands of Mo, 10 and the
Depariment of Trade and Indusiry on the Priday afternoon,
and there was mo peotest from colleaguees about its
contenss, and os the lirst thak I heard of concern was la
on the Saturday night, when the Solictir-Oeneral wld me
that he woeld be writing on the Monday, would it not hive
beei possible for collzagues (o have considered, discusssd
and peckaps aven agreed any withdrewal of amything in my
lepter that was misleading? As 1 did respond to the
Solicitor-Ceneral, and ax the e of ks lemer has bheen
published, would it pol Be now right for the 2x of my
reply o be published as well? Does the Prinee Mimste
accept that every word of the letter that [ ==nt o the
Europcan consortium stands wrccmmected by any sistement
by this Government?

The Prime Minister: The problem would never hipve
arisen had my right hon. Friend cleared his letter wilh ihe
Solicitor-Grenaral bocanse it was opof the basis of that
fetter thar commerzial fudgments would hove been micle
My right hoa, Friend did not do that He knew full well
thut | had cleared every word of my lener becawse it was
thought that o mught be incheded in or méeral to the
prospectus, Had my right hon. Friend cleared his eiter,
this problem wouald never have nrisen

Dr. David Owen (Plymoath, Devonport); Will the
Prime Minister neow tell the House when her office toid her
that it kad given cover to the Secretary of State's oflice 1o
reveal the lemer? [Dhd that happen on & or 7 Jenuary? When
did that happen, and why did she not el the House &5 soon
s she koew that her office had been invalved ko the leak?
How can the Prime Minister contines o hold the high
office that she does when she constituted a leak inguiry in
the full knowledme thar her office, and by mmplication she
herself, was fully involved in this whole sordid affar’

The Prime Minkster: [ do not think that ithe righd hon,
Cleptlenmn has fully mien inte accownt every singke thing
in my stelensent. The nguiry was set up o estblish the
facts. An enormous number of the Sacts wore not known
to me until yeserday—22 Janunry—when I received the
results of the inguiny

L
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Mr. Cranbey Onslow ("Wokmgh: My right hon. Friepd
witl be aware that many clght hon, and hon, Members on
Fhis I'l|'r|'|||h||ir.~11 Benches, ke the _il_'-l:hl hom. Member (0
Plymuesich, Dvooport (Dr, Onvwen), are pot really interested
in listening 0 the Gcis oof the full occount given by my
right hon. Priend. VWhat view does my right hen. I'riend
think that the House might hove token of any Minister in
any LGovermment placed inosuch an invidious sitgation by
the action of B colleague. who had failed in his duty o
crsure thik correct information was made public as snon
g5 poasible?

The Prime Minster; Yes, Mr. Speuker, it would have
been muech easier, as the fmem were comumercizlly
sensitive, if the selevant letters hed besn cleaned as mmine
wis with the Solicibor-General Tt was vitl to have
accurnte Informmation o the public domaln because we
knew that pedgroents might he foonded upon thet and that
the Government couid be Hable if wong jodgmens were
made &5 & fesull of s ket b {ormation. 1 was 1o el
thar sccuralc information W ihe public domain that [ gave
MY ConsEnl.

Mr, Jurk Dormand (Ensington: The Prome Minister
=axd that it was an open decizion teken by o, 10 to release
the better to the Press Associntion. Dhd the Prime Minisser
see Mr. Chris Moncoleff on the “9 o'clock news™ pn
television last night? Me. MoncoielT said thar thers was no
way it which he would réveal any details aboot that |efier,
ablour who of where i come [tom. s oot the right hon,
Lady aware that there 16 no more honourable a member of
the Press Gallery thin Mro Mopcriefi” Why shoold Mr,
Moncrielf say those words in comtradiction io what the
Prime Minister has wid the House this sfiemoon?

The Prime Minlster: | do not believe that there is a
contradiction, [ have set out the full facts os & result of the
inquiry and [ have st them oot extremely corefully and
azcurmtely. 1 hope that the hon, Gentleman will consider
them with the same care that 1 have given to expressing
them.

Mr. Micholas Falrbairn (Perth and Kinrossh: Does my
right lon. Friend apprecisse tht chis is probubly the House
of Commons at i+ worst when political parties which hope
to obtwm power and destroy the prosperaty that the
Crovernment have crented wish o make bopus points
peetending that they are matters of polnciple? Should bot
those partes consuls therr consciences”

The Prime Minister: T repeat that the report of the
myguiry wis submitied o me on X2 Jamary, On the basis
of the repon of that nguiy, most of the fects i which
were new to e, | have faithfully reported to the House.

Mr. Roy Jenkins [Glasgow, Hillheady: [s the rght
hon. Lady aware that as she and her Government sink
deeper into the bog of decelt and chicanery, atmost her
oy remmning memncable words will be that thers were
commerclal decisions invelved, and thst Governments

before hers have been activated by considerations higher
thazy thu?

The Prime Minister; | note what the right hon.
Gentleman save, Bl when commercinl decisions omd
differest reconstructions sme made oo the bosis of @
prospecius,  legal obligations follow and information
shoulf not be misleading. I should have hoped thar the
pight bop, Gentleman would accept that,

5 IAMTIARY 1984

Westland mie £56

Mr. Patrick Cormack (Steffordshie. South): Wen
the Secretary of Stete for Tracde srsd Indusiey addressed the
Honse ot Irﬂprh lEst wesk, did he Enow thar he hadl
authorizsed the leak?

The Prime Minkster: The lnquiry was under way. It
has now veported and given the facts.

Mr. Tam Dalyvell (Lizlithgow): When did the Prime
Minisier's press office frse el her what it had done?

The Prime Mindster: [ have given ns full an account
— [fmerruprion. J—of the inquiry that | established o
exrablish the facts T have xaid that T was not consulied at
e Thre,

Mr, George Gardiner {Beigaey; Will my cighi hon,
Friend take it from me, as one who worked a5 a poligacal
cormespondent i this bullding for 13 pears, that the events
which took plsce in the Depanimet of Trds and Industry,
which =he hus outlined, differ not ope Jot from the megailar
practice of Lebour Members when they wem m
povernment T Will she taloe it froom me that, ifthere is aoper
and criticism on the Comservative Benches, much of it
relates 20 the way in which & comparatively srraightfor-
wand igsue i baing blown upinio 20 prodesque a debate?

The Prime Minister: Because of the duty 1o see that
apcurate infonmaton non g commercimily sensitive mater
was [0 the poblic domain, the decision was taken. T have
said that T was 5ot consulied ar the time. [set upan inguiry
i esteblizh the foots. It bes esmblished them,

Mir. Jack -"'|."‘-h|l‘}' [atnkeson=Trend, South ) In view o
this alerooon’s exchanges, does the Prime Minister
copsider thut in six momths' time she will sl have the
same teamy and that she will be caprain of thoe team?

The Prime Minister: Yes, Sir

Mr. David Crowch (Canterbuaryy: | wonder whether [
muy make a comment as a Back Bencher who has never
understood the workings of the official or oneffcial
channets or the difference berween 2n official staigment og
i ssrement attmbuted o a spokesman. The mformation
thiat was released was of such imporence ther it shoold
hawe heen redeaserd of that Gime !_:l:r' WhaEleveEr manns.

The Prime Minister: My hon. Friend s making a
cotument oo the practice of non-aitribution. | sccept that
muny commentts could be miade about that.

Mr. Max Madden (Bradiosd, Wes): Will the Frime
Minister, who has alway's sought credit for being the Prime
Minister who is alwavs on the job, answer one simple
guestion? When was she wid by ber officials of their
involvement in the agreement 1o discloss the Saliciior-
Genernl’s letter by the Depastmient of Trade and Industry?

The Prime Minister: & vast number of the facts in that
report wers not given 1o me until yesterday. [ am not poicg
o tease out whet was and what was nof. A nomber of the
facis which came nthat report were pot knowm oo me onil

'_-'-l.'.\'J..:I'l.‘I;:",'

Several Hon, Vembers roe

Mr. Speaker: Order, [ muost bear in mind that we have
busineas questions sfter tuos and thal s 15 an Opposition
day with two imponnl debastes. | propose Lo allovy
guestions (o continve for o further 10 minutes.

Mr. Teddy Tavior (Southend, Easi); While there may
be some hoa, Members on both sides of the House who
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think that in this fast-moving situation o poblic statement
wiould have been preferable to an unnfficial leak, i= it noo
wrong to pllow dispgreements on this marper 1o distract s
from the fact that thoosands of jobs coold have been pul
at rick if the Government had allowed the board to ke a
dacision on the basizs of copflicting advice from differcmt
Diepatments? Mow that this matter has been disposed of,|
shoald we nor letr Westdand get on with the joh?

The Prime Minister: [ agree with the points o my
hon, Eriend’s |.'|||¢h[i-:_‘:-1| absoulr rhe |1u|;'|!i|;: chalertens and
allowing Westland oo i et on with the job

Mr. Joseph Ashton {Bassetlaw): Ax it is obvioos ths
the whole episode was conceived o get rid of the nghs
aon. Member for Henley (Me. Hessltine), whose job was
filled srithin IO minutes of his leaving the Cabinet, will
the Primme Minister tell us what he did woong wo merit such
meatment?

The Prime Minister: Perhaps the hon. Cientlaman has
forgotien that my fght bon, Frieod the Member for Henley
(Mr, Heselime) ook his own decision,

Mr. John Stokes (Hilesowen ind Stourbridps): I8 my
right hon, Priend sware that [ was In my constiugncy on
Friday mnd Samrday and that s large mumber of —
fierruptionf—did not mention: Westland o me? [5 she
further aware that in my posthag [ did ot receive one letier
on the suhject? Has nor the maner been blown up by the
press and seizéd on by the Opposition who are short of
arnrunition 10 use apainst the Government”

The Prime Minister: | heard tw'o thirds of what my
hon, Friend said and spreed with ic wholly. 1 am sone tha
the other one thind was morvelloos

Mr. Davld Winnick (Walsall, Northl: 15 the Prme
Minister awears that, instead of the robust, fghting
statement from ber that we were promised by the press, we
have had n shocldy, pithetic siatement which will oo
comvince most people bal which is s perfect iilusiration of
the deceitful way that the Government go aboul their
busipess? [= she further aware thad, while we am, of
cotrss, oll pleased thot o civil sepvant will be used ps a
scapegoat, it is plain that if the Secretary of State for Trade
and Industry had the least idea of what bonour meant, he
wold have restoned by now,

The Prime Mingster: The hon, Gentlemm has omitied
b menton the fact that I deliberately set up an ixjuiny o
establish the fucts. [t has established the facts, T have
repartad i the Howse wpon thei wirhin a day of recelving
the raport.

Mr. John Wilkinsoen (Ruislip-Borthwoodi: As it was
the Government's clear, collsctive decision before
Christmas that Westland’s fumre shoold rest with the
deciskon of the sharehobders and the coompany, how did my
right hon, Friend the former Secrstary of State for Defence
come 1o write that extraosdinacy letber 1o the chaimman of
& merchant bank which was neting on behalf of one of (he
partics involved with the potential rescue? In those
cifcumstances, was it not sight for the Law Officor and my
right hon, and leamed Froend the Secretary of State for
Trade and Industry to take extraordinary measures to give
the trae and scourate facts:

A3
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The Prime Minister: It was o unigque situation. 3y
nght hon. and [amed Fnemd the Secretnry of State for
Trade and [ndusity had & duty 1o see that the facts wers
awnitable at the relevant meeting. [t would have been betier
if we had all followed the same procedore diring that
difficule and sensifive perlod and clesred owr |eters with
ather Departments and with the Solitor-General .

Mr. Bryvan Gould [Dagenham): On this isoe gl
miny cdhers, have pol the Governoeil become opne Whers
the merest assertion of Pome Mimsterial power wned
paironage is deemed sufficient to swesp asikde principles
and honowr?

The Prime Minister: No, Mr, Speaker. There are
somme who woald allege thif Prome Minsienal power wis
oot sauificiently in evidence dunng past of the incident

. Kedth Hampson (Leeds, North-Westh 1s my nighd
bon. Friend aware that all hon, Members would prafer
accurate information o be placed in the poblic domain?
[he infoemation had o be acooraie for the sharahbaldees of
Westlimd, Would it oot have been betier i, mstead of
leaking a smill part ol the Soliciior-Cenen] s leter to da
the most demage to a colleague, there had been a delny 30
thit the reply of my mght hon, Friend the Member for
Hepley (Mr. Hessitine}l, wihich was acoepted by the
Solicitor-{eeneral, and the evidence for which the
Solicitor-(reneral had asked, could atsn be released so that
the shareholders coold make & proper edement?

The Prime Minister; | think thog 1t 15 essential 1o gel
it the public domnin the fact that there were possible
fmoccuracies which were relavant to that situntion. | accept
ar pace that it would have been berer if 2 statement had
been made or if the information kad been meleased in &
different way.

Mr. Dick Douglas (Dunfermling, Wiesti; The Prime
Blinister has piven us cengin detmiled mformation as to (he
factiza]l accurscy of what hoppensd, Can the Prime
Minister help me as I am & layman and nor 8 lawyer and,
as | urderstand ir, the Soliditor-General's expestise is in
legal rartars, What vital legal considerstion was at siake
o thig isswe? [26d the Solleior-Ceneral knew that his leasr
would be leaked?

The Prime Minister: In the letter which [ quoted, nmd
which the hon, Gentleman knows his been relzased fully
int the public domain, the Soliciios-Gepersl said, In
respect of whal my nght hon. Fnend the then Secretary of
Stute for Defence had written:

Ie by focssetable than wour Derper will b polisd apon Oy (e
Wesdland Boand aned s sharchalders,

Crnsistenthy with the adhvice | gave o the Prime Minister on
31 Dedeantier; the (odvernmenl in duch Ciilmstibes i Undsr o
dury. @ol o gve nlornaton wihich 15 ineompless O (ERCeumnD
n any mecreal particular™
That is becpuse of the prospectus poant.

Mr. D N, Campbell-Savours (Workingion): Ii the
Prime Minister aware thot when in fumers the people of
Britnin examing these doys, they will say that the Prime
Minmister did not tell the truth. Is the Prime Minister pwire
thar in 1963 Mr. Profumo, in admiting to the Hoose that
hie had deliberately misled it, was found o be o comfempt,
and that ke admited ks comtempt? Docs the Prime
Minlsier not accept thet this maner would be best dealt
with by the Commites of Privileges, which & in a posiiaon
i fioed oue the natare of the conlEmpd thal has imken |'|I.'|[:='.:
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Ihe Prime NMingster: | hHiI||:||' meject and résent e
feoay, Cienttiemman s assumpdion

Mr. Norman St John-Btevas (Chelmsford): 15 the
Prime Minisier sware thar, whatever the faulis of the
CGovernment In bandling this siuason—and there have
heenn grave Fauls — nothing jusiifies the farrago, the
hypoctisy, e hiembiee and the cant thisl we bave had o
endure from right bop, and hon, Labour Members?

The Prime Minister: [ am grateful 1o my rght hon
[Friepat. 'I'!lr-:'-n.tl;h;ml. 1 |h.'_1|,a|_1:h| it whsolotely viil that, ns
Woestlinel s, the choles, it shoathd be able o moke thid
choite on the basis: of occurate, and oot miskeading,
inforrnagion. That will condnue o be our policy.

Mr. Terry Duvis (Birmingham, Hodgs Hiil): Dossthe
Prime Mimister think that 15 should nesd an inguary for her
i beam whid had bBeen suthocised by a member of ber
Cobinet?

The Prime Minister: Had [ stempled not o Bave an
mguiry and said, “Twill do it internally,” rght hon, and
hon, Gentlemen opposite would have been the first o
crilichse.

Mr. Dwuglas Hogg (Granthzimn); Does pay right Ton
Friend accept char the pencral judgment will be that we
have had a candid speech, It way clearly in the notionnl
ioterast, ad in the indenest of the company, that the
mionmation  sheald have been discossed. Al we ane
titlking about is the manmer of the disclosare, wnd that is
an essentialhy wiviel nnd minoe mareer. Does my right hop.
Friend alse aecept ihat the elociosats will nos casily foreel
thase who PETPLINENE thig miatler il of TRHETOW | |.'u.'r'u:1|1:|.|
amd political Ingeresa?

The Prime Minbster: | sm graeful toomy o, Friend
| only add one thing—1 wish that the mianner of rhe
cdisclosune bid been diflerent and momw orihodox

Mr. Nigel Spearing (MNewham, Southl: The Prime
Mingster has vold she House thot the Secretary of Stae for
Treade sind Indusiry authorised whit she called “material
elements” in the Solicitor-General™s letier, and not the
wiale lewer. The Prime Minister said that this was covered
by Downing strect. Can the right hon. Lady tell the Heowse
ta whsam Mr. fnﬁha.m 1% aceoantahle and who decades Has
standing orders?

The Prime Minister: [ have lookesd carciolly i the
stitemenl, aod §esk the hon, Gentleman to look carefully
ol the simtement w-see whor was aereed and whar was
a.'.‘:-.."‘l:p[-:‘.'d. It wras deafued .:ll'ls-:l'l]ulr_']}' in accordance with the
oepart that I reecived. | ahould hke o axy Lhul Mlr, .Iﬂ_l{h,.'lﬂ'l
hag servad successive Governments with devolion and
dedication, and [ have gren confidence in him,

Mr. Jerry Wiggin (Weston-super-Mare)d: My righ
hon, Friemd did ned mention this in her stement, but may
we take it that the wnter of the letter, the Solicifor-
General, gave his approval in advance that part of the letter
should be salectively leaked to the press?

The Prime Minister: Mo, Sir, and [ desply regret that.

Mr. Tony Banks (Mewham, Nonh-West), The Prime
Minisier snd that sbe feels that the informadon in the lemer
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amtldl have Been made pubiie in orhes ways than theough
acleak, Camn tbe Prime Mioister say o wisil wavs 11 should
hive been given o the pressd

The Prime Mindster: It 18 now o hypothetical question.
The alernarive way woald have been to make a siraight
giaenent. As the hon. Gentleman knows, thines were not
easy al thal ume, The people concerned —1 say again
thit | was nol consulied—were op against & fevere thme
consiraint, as 1 =aid in the statement

Mr. Patrick Nicholls (Teignbridge): Does my nght
hiam. Priersd find it cemarkable that the Cpposition’s
bdignarbon on the question o leaks |5 selectiveT Why, for
instance, do we ool hear abour the feak of Sir Raymond
Lygo's letter to my cght hon. Frend the Member for
Henley {Mr, Heseltine)? Adl this Bt air wmounils io the Facl
that if o leak will damage the Governmeni the ODpposition
will highlight it, and if it does nof damage the Govermmenl
they will igoore it completely,

The Prime Minlster: | am grateful to my hoa. Friend.
| repedr again that [ belleve v was rght ot 1o have
polentially misleading mlopmation sl & time when
ir.-'|.:|'.l-::-'rra111r commercinl decrsions wepe ashout o be 1@ken
which mmvedvisd the future of o particular comeany

Mr. George Foualkes (Carrck, Cumaock and Doen
Valleyr: Wil the Prime Minister give the House an
assprance now that when she has “tewead oul™ the detarls,
is she (esoribes them, she will tefl the Bouse exactly when
she was wld of her officers” involvement in the disclosune

The Prime Minlster: [ set up an inguiry to find: out the
fagrs, | discovered most of the faos when the inguiry had
been reporiesd

Sir Peier Hordern (Homsham): It has been known (or
many  wears that the people who stund in the grestes|
danger in this place are Lobby joumalists. They nsk being
run ovar-and ripped up by Cabiser Ministers and others
oying o wll them secrets, OF cowrse it would have been
Fefter & make &0 Cen SLAlErment Al the time, but we are
nmeaking boo much fuss obaat o tny compiny—~ate about
the size of & modermte botel in north Londion, 1t is ime thai
we ol on with some proper business:

The Prime Minister: As | urderstood i, we had a clcar
doty o see that nocurate snd oot misleading information
wis pub into the public domain at the tme. My right hon,
Friend carmed o thar dury, and T apres that his judgment
of getting it into the public domain was right, but [ did pot
like the way i which 1t was done,

Mr. Nell Kinmock ([zlwynk: On a pomt of oxder, Mr
Speaker.  Becagse of the wholly unsatisfactory ol
unconvineing namre of the Prime Minister's statement amd
|l.'.|1|||.1$ s ;:_':l,:||_1|r||;||| [ wizh 1o BEwE: il formal notice that
[ shall, ai the appropriate time this aftespoon, seck leave
to move the Adjoumment of the Heuse under Standing
Cirder Mo, 10,

Severnl Hon. Members fose—

Mr. Speaker: Cnder, [ have o siabement 1o make,




Deparimental Mimuto

Departmental Minute

4. 20 pm

Mr. Speaker: Following points of order vesterday, [
have looked ar the further document handed in by the hoe.
Member  for Workdngien  (Mr,  Campbell-Savours)
}'E'=-1.|:||.|a‘._'. whech g Lo B g exiract Trom Lhe of hicial
miknwie of he TEeEng held «m 17 October berween the
Secretary of State for Trade and Indbesiry apd S John
Cickney, | nmote that thers are only minor differences
herween this extmct, wmd the words guoted By the hon
ember from the iminuie which be said be wos using when
be put hiz original peint of order o me on Mondiy,

These differences do not affect the miling [ have already
given that the passage in the speoch of the Sgererary of
Stats, of which complain has been made, was pold
guotation, [t 35 to be expecied that F an accukate ascount
is o be given to the House of & meering, diobdies some
words will be found 1o ke comman 1o both the account and
any record of that coeeting. But our mile & concemed
scblely wiath quotation, and [ have nobed thae there was no
CuedElom. Oon P $ocasin

I contimm: what [ gaid yesterday. 1 am oot respomsibie
lor looking Behind whit is said in the Houss to check
whelher wonds wsed by Minisiers ans alwa o be found in
official documents. Tt would put an impossible burden: on
any Speaker to ask him fo do that. T intend o continue to
uphold the houss's mubs on this teatter as sef out in " Erskine
2fay"” which has now been gquoted several dmes, and in 56
domg, I shall be continuing o act in exactly the same way
Bs my predecessors have dione.

Mr. D. M. Camphell-Savours (Workingion): On a
posist of oider Mr. Speaker

Mr. Speaker: Onder, [ bave made my ruling and
niathing &rises.

Mr. Campbell-Savours: I meerely wish o thank you
for your ruling, Mr. Speaker

Mr. Andrew Faulds (Warley, East): On a podmt of

onder, M:. Hp-c.akn: | have apother poiml of order
alicpather,

Mr. Speaker: Order. 1 shall take it after the business
slpternent
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Business of the House

4.2 om

The Lord Privy Scal aond Leader of the House of
Commons [Mr. John Biffen): With permission, Mr
speiker, 1 should like to milke o business salement. The
busipess for nexl wesk will be as follows;

Moxpay 27 JaNuany—>second Reading of the Alrpons
Bill

Tuespay 28 Jasuapy—>Seoond Rending of the Sooial
Securnify Bill

Moton on fhe London H;yl-_m:.'l Framsport [Levy)
Ciler

WeDxEsDay 20 Jasuary — Opposition Day  (5th

siabaa ] 20y 3 hene ikl be @ oeSale of 8 motion if e

marme ob ghe leader ol the Libersil ity [he subvect Tor
debule o be annogmoed,

Thiere will be w -delobe oaea elon G 2o s
ecommendations of the Do of Commons (Serviees)
Commiliee Ke et 158 K5 pelating o research assistomts,

Traurspay 30 JasNUaky—Thers will be & debate on the
Army on & motion for the Adjournment of the House.

FRIDAY 3T JARUARY—Privale NMembers' Halls.

Muipay 3 Fegruary—5Second Reading of the Housing
gnd Planning Rill

Mr. Kinnock: | em graeful to the right bom.
Gertleman, When e we lkely to have a debate on the
publiz exmeaditure White Papes? Will he reassons os that
these will be o debate on the White Paper on the Clannel
fized Hnk well before the signing of the reaty benwean
Francg and Hrlion 10 aboil thes weeks” me? Doss he
pgree that it woudld be intolerabls i Britain were tied in m
i binding treaty belfore Parlinment had hed a chance to give
its view op the isore and vote on it?

Will the nmght hon. Gentleman ensure that there 1% an
early stotement on Denmick’s position in the EEC now
that the Darish Parfiament has mejecied the reform
package? Finally, when will the Hoose get an opporunicy
i debate the Green Paper on rate reform!?

Mr. Biffen: Perhaps | might answer the rght hon,
Gentleman's questions in reverse order, A simement- wall
b miade o the rate refonn proposals. Perhaps through the
usual channels we eould then consider the appropriste dme
foor a dlehate, | shall of course draw the sitention of my right
b, and learned Friemd the Foreign Secretary o whart the
bt hon. Ceentieman snid aboul Denmngk and Lhe EC in
the <omiexl of e relofm package. 1 mecognlse the
continuing nterest [or another debate on the Chamel
tunnel in the coptext of the White Paper. T do not think that
these i3 any likelihood of the treary becoming effective
before (he Houss has considaned the maner, Finally, [ hope
thut we might be ahle to consider further through the usual
channels & debate on public expenditune.

Mr, MNichilas Winlerton (Macclesfield)y: My nghi
hon. Friend is aware thot the textile and clothing indusiries
cimploy ope 0 10 -of those empioved In manefgciring in
Baigakn, [ dr sise Ut s & also dwine (Dal e mialtl-fibee
ArmAngement 18l & cratical stage, L tho Lamish Parliame
is zhle o stind wup for the best ineress of 1he Danlsh
'|1:|l|'l]:. will ke enstre that this Pardiament hes an
Oppartunity 10 expmess iy views on bow the MEA &5 goang
and the European uapproach before any sgresment 15
signed?
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The Chief Secretarvy has asked me to draw attention to the
passage 1in the Prime Minister's statement +this afternoon
that

"The text of my letter of 1 January 1986 was agreed
in detail by the Secretary of State for Trade and
Industry, the Secretary of 8State for Defence, the
Chief Secretary and finally by the Bolicitor Gemeral."

The Chief Becretary was not informed that this was
going to be said. Had he been consulted, he would have
pointed out that thia is incorrect. An early draft was
geen by his Private Office who showed it En Treasury
officials whe in turn offersed some comments directly to
Charles Powell. However neither this draft nor the final
text, which was very —dilferent, was seen by t he
Chief Becretary before the Prime Minister sent her letter
nn'TdEEHﬁEF?T-{EL alone agreed in detail by him.

The Chief Secretary feelzs that it is important that
this 1is drawn to the Prime Minister's attention before
the debate on Monday, 27 January.

.
[ "_1.:.

)
k;biﬁuihuﬁifii

R J BROADBENT
Private Secretary

CONFIDENTIAL
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As you know, the Solicitor General has made a note of the part which
he himself, and this Department, played in the clroumstances which led up
to- his decision to send his letter of & January to Mr. Heseltine and subseguent
related events.  Though the gircumstances [n which the letter came to be
written ought not to be relevant to the discussion which will follow this
afternoon's statement by the Prime Minister, it is possible that guestions
on that matier may be addressed to her and she may be drawn on [t. He

therefore thinks that she might find [t helpful to see the attached two
extracts from his note: she may not at present bé sware ol all the details.

H GTEEL




*

On Monday morning é Jan I reconsidered the documenis with
Mr Saunders and we both firmly confirmed the provisional
opinion we had formed on Saturday. I accordingly drafted
with Mr Saunders & letter to Mr lleseltine which was brought.
to me for signature at about 11,15 a.m. while I was

.veonferring with the A.G. end the D.P.P on the Roskill Report.

—- - - —

I left the room to check it, signed it, handed it over to
Hrlhﬂunﬂnra, end returned to the A.G, It was classified
‘Confidential'. It was copied, as had the previous
correspondence to the P.M. Sof S DTI, Foreign Secrelary

and Chief Secretary. I emphasised in my letter that I had
seen- no more evidence than that contained in the above documents,
but that, consistently with my previous advice to the P.M

(which itself had been copiéd to MOD) I considered that the
Government was under a duty not to give information which
is incomplete or inaccurate in a material particular and

ey

advised the Sof S to write again to Mr llorne correcting the
inaccuracies.




I should add that at about 11.20 a.m. on Monday 6 January,

No.10 = Mr Powell - telephoned Mr Saunders to inquire

'"What view the S5.G. had taken and Ej_the 5.G. was writing to
Mr Heseltine. : lle was told that a letter had been signed

and that No 10 would be getting their copy very shortly.

: L]

My decision to write to Mr Heseltine was taken entirely

in my own discretion, after consulting Mr Saunders, who

was of the opinien that the facts as known to me demanded

it, for the reason I have identified, I was certainly not
instructed to write, nor was I asked to write, by or on behal

\ of the P.M. or anyone else, I was asked to consider writing,







‘ DIFFICULT SUPPLEMENTARIES

On what date did the Prime Minister set up the leak enguirv; and on
what date was she first made aware that her office had authorised
the leak?

Was the SO5 for Trade and Industry aware in advance of the means by
which this letter would be made public: and did he approve it?

Was the Solicitor-General made aware at any stage that any of the
centents of his letter to the 505 for Defence would be made public:
and if not, whvy not?

. The Prime Minister has said that "it was not possible to procesd
by way of a formal and agreed statement" Why not?

« Why is it that offiecials in the MOD (Clive Ponting) who leak
documents without Ministerial approwval but which they believe to
be in the national interest are prosecuted; whereas officials in
No. 10 who also leak documents without Ministerial approval but
which they also believe to be in the natieonzl interest are not
similarly prosecuted?

18 the Prime Minister not in effect saying that, because she did not
have the guts to sack the then 505 for Defence, it was perfectly
acceptable for her office to use the methods of Clive Ponting

and Sarah Tisdall to discredit a senior member of her Cabinet.

Wnat would be the Prime Minister's view if her oiflce, without her
permission, had leaked confidential deocuments which instead of
being helpful te her, were unhelpful?




le .&I.-‘-ﬁ.-’T-‘. YOU- OFFERFED 'TU EESTON O ARE | COING TO DG 507

A

N, I shall not, however, remain any longer than I command the
confidence of the Prims Minister. I understand that I retaln that

confidenca.,
HAYVE YOU EEEN BEPRIMANDED, DISCIPLIFED OR DO YOU EXPECT To BEY
" [ 9

DID YOU AUTEORISE A LEAK?

nowever
¥o. I did not /seek to prevent the communication of information
to B4 s

DID YOU REFUSE TO LEAK?
All I ecan say is that I 4id not communicate with the PA.
WHY DIDMN® 10 MOT ISSUE TEE IEPOBUMATIONT

I took the view that the communication of this information was a

matter for the sponsoring Department and not for Ne '10.

DO YOD ACREE WITE THE PRIME MINISTER IT WOULD EAVE BEEN BETTEER TO
MAKE AN OPEN STATEMENT?

Yes. 1 am never happy with leaks. 1 suffer too much from them.
In an ideal world it would have been much better to find another
way of communicating the informationm to the public. But 1 do not
aperate in an ideal world and the whole of the Westland affair has
been far from ideal It has demonstrated the problems which arise

when 8 Minister breaks Cabipet collective responsibility. Those

problems became particularly accute during the day in question and
—-.—-_’- v
were compounded by pressures of time.

DID YOU SUGGEST AN ALTERNATIVE METHOD?

Fao. PBut I did consider alternative methods and rejected them on

the grounds of time.




RO YOI EPT THIS WILL DAMAGE YOUR PROFESSI , REPUTATION

I don't supposs it will help samong those who want $0 criticise

or-Ehink ill ot wvoa. But fthet s fthe Bazayd gl the Job, I

)

COount

mysell fortupote 1T, as I hope' I can, rely on 8 reputation bullt

up ever more than & yegrs with the Primpe 'Minister.

gl W gt ol

SHQULD YOU 30T HAVE TOLIY THE PRINE MINISTER ALL THE FACTS!

I was perfectly content for the whole of the gircumstances
investigated, & report to be prepared and the outcome to be

digclosed. I cooperated fully with the inguiry.

Lo

be




WHAT WAS MER. HESELTINE'S RESPONSE TO THE LETTER?

As was reported at the time, my Rt., Hon. Friend replied to

the Solicitor General drawing his attention to additional

_— —

material which the Sclicitor General had not seen and which

—

he balievad to be more than sufficient to susfain the statemant

he had made to Lloyds Merchant Bank.

The Solicitor General then indicated that the additional
gvidential material supplied was identified in terms too
genaral for him to form a view. Fe therefore indicated that
the judgment as to whether my Rt. Hon. Friend's letter to

Lloyds Merchant Bank was accurate must remain the responsibility

—

Of my Etf. Hon. Friend the Member for Henley.

My Rt. Hon. Friend the Member for Henley wrote again to Lloyds

Merchant Bank confirming his original letter.




Why the charade of an “inguiry" when you knew the facta?

As my statement makes clear, the story is guite complicated.

I thought it important to establish all the facts.

15 the Prime Minister endorsing the leaking of information

in this way - particularly of confidential advice giwven

by the Solicitor Genaral?

Clearly better ways could and should have been found to
make the relevant information publie. But T believe my

Rt. Hon. and Learned Friend's basic intention was Corract.

———— s — T =

Why was the leak selective? (Omission of point that letter

Wwritten on the basis of information available to me).
It was important to get the main elements of my Rt. Hon. and
Learned Friend the Seolicitor General's advice into the public

domain very guickly.

Was the selective guotation misleading?

Mot in the unusual circumstances then surrounding public
comment on Westland. My hon and Learned Friend's letter
has, of course, subsequently been published in full.

What did yom do to try to reconcile conflicting views?

I had already done this in the preparation of my letter

cf 1 January.
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When did the inguiry start?

Lfelear o aprm it o

-

Pifal dod BT

4
[ Wher—T—amoanoedt—tt—teo—the House @n k2 Januaryt

i
4 Lo Ly 1

Why was there a delay in setting up the inguiry since
& Januarcy? b PN emdiving
5

qu;..ﬂ;-l.rl". r" Laesd. |

Mot an unusual amount of time elapsed.

Why a leak inguiry, given the circumstances revealed in
your statement?

I santed—toensure$hat the normal precedures Tegarding
disclesure—ef—informatien were foliowad most
scrupulossly. It wWas necessary to find out all the
facts. f

When was the infuiry completed?

On 22 January.

/

when did the Attorney General receive the report?

gn 22 January.

Why did the [Prime Minister say (Col 1208, 16 January) of
the custom #ith regard to leak ingquiries - "Their ocutcome
iz not annodnced™ when there are precedents for
announcing ﬁhe ragulta?

There is no precedent for making public the repert of a
laak inquiry. On occcasion the cutcome has been made
Known .

JFDI gxample, as when the rt. hon, Member (Mr. Callaghan)

el t..-.l.--».;;. e

4




announced to the House on | ELALEJ 1976 the
ragsults of an inguiry into the disclosure of information
regarding child hene[its!.

But it certainly is the case that it is not the normal
custom to announce the outcome of inguiries. Doing so0

in this case because it is right to do so.

What has happened about inguirles into other leaks during
the Westland affair, and especially into the leak in the
Obgerver of Sunday 22 December into Mr. Brittan's minute
of 4 October?

That inguiry is still continuing.

Will the cutcome of that inguiry also be made known?

I have not yet received a report.

Is a leak inquiry being instituted into the source of the
article in the Financial Times of 22 January headed
"Younger considers cancelling Wimrod early warning

aircraft"?

That is gging’ﬁﬁﬂgzgérad+ ﬁ#g_ f_HkE Lh«EHLhtj e Cha gﬁnﬁﬂgf

- Tt 8 Weive |suwnolistye
E.:'Fk?(_.-._.\_f.-:l'._h'h-._ * e L E L"f I'.I-!ﬁ:;"lﬂ;l e

Will the Prime Minister publish the text of Sir Robert u‘:fl_"'[":?“

Armstrong's report of his ingquiry? : i

'

Is a Minister of the Crown, including the Prime Minister,
permitted to leak a clagsified document, whether or not
it contains the advice of Law O0fficers? What rules,

conventions, or law cover the disclosure of advice by the




Law QOfficers?

A disclosure of official information with the authority
af the Government does not constitute a leak.

212, Who drew the attention of the Sclicitor General to
Mr. Heseltine's letter to Mr. Horne?
_t'E iy h:.-l ‘.ﬂ_:—.:?
B, The Secretary of S5tate for Trade and Industry, as the

gsponsoring Minister for Westland, Ama @i adlesben o Ha
'\-,I.-.'.-\.-'I""\. -|'::\-\,:-|.-\.n-|-.r\-l by By Heicfidmear 't Lelle. .

Why was it felt necessary to make known publicly the
Solicitor General's doubts about the accuracy of

Mr. Heseltine's letter to Mr. Horne? And why the urgency
to get it out before Weatland's presa conferencey Could
not the purpose have been served by a message to
Westland's board?

As I said in my statement, it was the policy of thae
Government agreed by the Cabinet that it should be left
to the Westland Company to decida what course it was best
to follow. That being so, it was important that 1t
ghould be made Enown Pub'iif,:l]r that there were thought to
be material inaccuracies which needed to be corrected in
my rt. hon. Friend the Member for Henley's letter of

3 Janmuary, which had itself been made public; and that
this [act should 1f possible become public knowledge

before 8ir John Cuckney's press conference at 4.00 p.m.

that afternnnn.i Poileming Ascissttions bedricon Tht mpang amd Gic bepavtmmont

e . A |
B e alienl e Pl wllie  ve Jakia Gy Siery F71d prvncolsy | iy kRl

Fusal §
Did Westland ask for the information to be made public }

-

that day before its press confarence?

Mo .

015. Would there not have been time for a short public




astatement to be made calling Mr. Heseltina's assertions
inte guestion rather than a hele-in-the-corner cperation?
Why not have given the Press Bssociation an attributable
statemant?

Impossible for one Secretary of State to make a public
gtatement contradicting that of another Secretarcy of
State. My rt. hon. Friend took the wiew that there was

a pressing urgency toc bring the information into thae
public domain and there was just not time to prepare and
reach agreement on a separate formal statement in view of
his belief that the then Secretary of State for Defence

wonld have contested the Law Officers' wviaw.

Were the Law Officers consulted at any time ovar the
intended leak to PA, and did that idea occur to anyvona?

No .

I2 there any gquestion of prosecution of any Minister or
official, leaving aside the official who has bean granted
immunity? Does your statement close the chapter so far

as ¢riminal proceedings are concerned?

As my statement makes clear, my rt. hon. and learned
Friend the Attorney General has decided that there is no
case for proceeding under the Official Secrets Act in
respect of any of the persons concerned in this matter.

If sno, does this not reveal thera is one Dfficial Secrets
Act for Ministers and senior civil servants and one for

more junior grades?

Mo, because this disclosure was made with authority.




Will you name the officials involved?

Ho.

Are they to be disciplined or removed to other posts?

Ho reason to do so.

Why wouldn't your office leak the wital piece of
information, given the orgency?

It was the responsibility of the Department of Trade and
Industry as the sponsoring Department for Westland to
bring the relevant information into the public domain.
Was No. 10 trying to distance itself from dirty tricks?
Hot at all.

When was the Bolicitor General's letter to Mr. Heseltine

available in the Secretary of State for Trade and
Industry's Offica?

1.30-67m. Prrouwind, oot |

When was the Solicitor General's letter to Mr. Heseltine
available in No. 107

—
About the same time. . B4 WOEWV

Why did Mr. Brittan not see it until 1.307%

He was at an engagement outside his Department. He did




not seea the letter. It was read to him over the

telephone.

Has the Law Officers' independence been compromised?
ity = e e

ey M4 i £ LF s
o -'J LE' P .-.-n-r:--\..l.rh:{_.-\..‘...-.p‘ oy iy B __-'"":II"'"r

Fied : %,
Not at all. Law Officers will contisue—to carry out
their traditienal—role—as they ave done i thiscase.

Has any Minister or Law Officer offered their

resignation?

This did not arise.

What is the Governmant's attitude now to OSA Section 2.

A. [What the Prime Minister said in the House recently].




Did the Prime Minister authorise the disclosure?

Ho.

Did her office authorise the leak?

I made the position quite clear in the statement.

But DTI asked permission from Ne.l0 to leak the letter?

I made the position guite clear in the statement.

What part did Mr Bernard Ingham play?

I do not intend to go into details about the role played by

individual civil servants.

Did she or her office know in advance the Eolicitor General's
letter would be disclosed?

I dealt with that in my statement.

Did she or her office receive a copy of the letter befare it
was diseclosed?

Naturally, she was on the capy list along with other

Ministers.

F 3
Did e bawsd a Lobfie arm HH--.-nJ

.'-'"r:l\. —\-? '[l'\-l-lL e L :.--\.r:r\---rr..r Ll;j o SYI E1-|'Iu'.n- phr.-‘.-\.r'ru-uﬁ.m-l.[ -

Does she now regard the disclosure as justified?

Yes, I have explained in my statement.




If s0, why was the letter classifield?

It is—thenormal—euastom—for letters ta have this -grading.
e | ] r 4 o = [y """l-
vt madt by -y H & LF Bw 3= n ty "'_;.n""{' of -7 B |
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Has not the Government got double standards in view of the
treatment meter®d out to Ponting and Tisdalg?

Their disclosures were not authorised by Ministers.

The Secretary of State was repeatedly asked about the leak
@.gJ. during the debate. He had the answers. Why didn't he
give them?

The inquiry was still in progress.

Isn't it disgraceful that a civil servant was instructed by a
Secretary of State to break the law?

Tha law was not broken.

The Prime Minister and Mr Brittan clinging to office
regardless of constitutional propriety or personal honours?
He acted properly within his responsibilities.

Mr Brittan breached collective responsibility and

confidentiality. Why doesn't he resign or be sacked?

He acted properly within his responsibilities,




. If laaking this document was justified why not all the other
documents e.g. 4 and 18 October?

The 1EEEE:“EEEETE_ﬁns—nﬂt—iéﬁkﬁﬁ Thefe is no analogy with
the documents of 4 and 18 Dctﬂher hEcauEe thEy were not
material to the cnmmarc;affjuﬂgment and ﬂecislnns which had to
be made. b R dmglaeud ™y CRlerrant | Hitvy mosg vy .;r-c..-cnf_
besisiamybmmce| domemandiny perbiselan Loale. |

Caollective responsibility has broken down. Wasn't Hezeltine
Justifiad?

I guite agrea that Mr Hes&;ine should have cleared his letter

to Lloyd's Merchant Bank with colleaques and the Law Officers.

Doesn't this prove Heseltine's point? Brittan was campaigning
for Bikorsky/Fiat as he was campaigning for the European
option?

As I told the House on 1% December it was the policy of the
Goverment, agreed by the Cabinet, that it should be left to
the Westland company to decide what course it was bast ta

follow in the interests of the company and its employees.

If Heseltine behaved so badly why did the Prime Minister not
sack him there and then?

I had hoped that the Right Honourahle Member for Henley would
have been ready to accept gﬁiﬂcallectiue responsibility. But
his resignation proved that he was not willing to do so.




FERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL

ref, AOGB6/233

FPRIME MINISTER

Westland: Scolicitor General's Letter

I attach a revised version of the draft of the statement
which vou are proposing to make in the House of Commons tomorrow

aftarnoon.

2, I have discussed this draft at a meeting with the three
officials of the Department of Trade and Industry principally
concernad, two membars of your office and ths Legal Sescretary to

the Law Officers. The draft is agreed by all_Eén:erned; save

that the Legal Secretary to thes Law Dfficers says that the

Attorney General has not yet finally decided that there is no

case for @ proceeding under the Official Secrets Act in respect

of any of the persons concerned in this matter, and wishes to

—

consult further with the Sglicitor General and the Director of

Public Prosecutions before making a declsion on that matter. 1

have strongly urged that it is desirable that that matter should
ba decided before you make your statement tomorrow afternoocn,
and 1 understand that the Attorney General is due to meet the

[

Director tomerrow morning. &

B —

3. I am sending copies of this minute and of the draft to the
Lord President, the Foreign and Commonwealth Secretary, the
secretary of State for Trade and Industry, the Attorney Gensral
and the Chief Whip. 1 am also sending copies to each of those

who were present at my meeting.

22 January 1986 ROBERT ARMSTRONG

PERSONAL ARD CONFIDENTIAL

RTAAAP
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DRAFT STATEMENT

With Permission, Mr Speaker, 1 wish to make a statement.

PRV N o Y q#uq hﬁﬁ#&a&ﬂﬁrlﬁr edchidey i "ﬁpmJa;: R PO e S :ik
& A8 the House knows, the Chairman of Westland plec, Sir John
Cuckney, wrote to me on 30 December 1985, asking whether
Westland would no longer be considered a Europesan company by the
Guvernmentfif a miEErity sharehelding in the company were held
by a majﬂrlinternati;;al group f£rom a NATO country outside

Furope,

3. Since this guestion was of fundamental importance te the
company, in making its decision as to what course it was best to
follow in the interessts of the company and its employees,|[it was
eggantial to be gure that my reply should ke in no way
migsleading to who might rely upon it in making G
pommarcial judgments and decisions. The reply was theraefore
0 j .

& %Lﬂéﬁﬁﬁéﬂ-ln gmeni detail among the Departments concerned, and-

the text of my letter of éiJanuary L5986 was agreedi&grd for word

by my Right Hon and Learned Friend the Secretpry of State for
Trade and Industry, my Right Hon Friends thét?écre?a;y of State
for Dafence and the Chief Secretary, Treasury, an LE? n and
Learned Friend the Solicitor General. My letter was made
public,

4, Two days later, on 3 January, my Rt Hon Friend the then
EecretﬂmﬂﬁEZELaLE for Defence replied to a letter of the same
':LJ date fml.lﬂ}'dﬁ METE'-E-“I'I: Ban -Elbkj.‘&‘hll'ﬂ a number of guestions.
‘MdﬁgbiYﬁht Hon Friend"s E?E_f baf—matarial-,
' I o inciunde—ta—-myletterof -1
JﬂE__;1.Lﬂ_S+F—&¢ﬂﬂ—EUEtnﬁr—_~$ha#—repL{)waq not discussed with
any other Mlnxste:fﬁﬂ?:*;grtleular;Lthﬂugh Lhe reply was
material to the commercial judgments and decisions that would
have to be made, my Hon and Learned Friend the Solicitor General
was not invited to scrutinise the letter before it was issued,

1
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H On the morning of & Januacy my Hon and Learned Priend the
Solicitor General wrote to my Right Hon Friend the Secretary of
Stata for Defence, to say that, in his opinion, and on the basis
of the information available to him, one senterice in his letter
of 3 January to Lloyds Merchant Ban{ contained mat&rial

'-'r-r“'hq-—ﬁ ,.'-;u: e [ — LR
inaccuracies, aad ta-advise the Secretary of State Ih write

; i e
again tc:]li. oyds Merchant Bank correcting the inaccuracies.

]hﬂﬂ der that th hould be && h u_%h.u
" arder tha there anou e ':!DT!'I reng ive

an account of the circumstances in which th‘rﬂ-h-&vel—&a-p-pe

decided, with the agresment of my Right Hon and Learned Friend 1,,_“_,_._
the Attorney General, that there should be an inguiry by the P
Head of the Civil Service, who could ask for full accounta from ."‘-"""F
those caoncerned, That inguiry was completed and submitted to me
yesterday. e
B. As I told the House on 19 December, it was the policy of

the Governmenkt, agreed by the Cabinet, that ik should be left to

the Westland _.cﬁfp-any to decide what course it was best to follow

in the interests of the company and 1ts empluyeea.L'l‘hat being

bhnna—wsmﬂ;mmm—ﬁb&-&e—mﬁ&y—w it was
impaortant T-narf__'it- should be made Known publi:ly that there were

thought to be material inaccuracies which needed to be corrected
in my Eight Hon Friend the Member for Henley's letter of
3 January, Wit fad—tesels beon—made—publia, E0 as to avoid any
risk of commercial judgments or decisions being made on the
basis nrinfarmatian.m-ﬂmmm. Morecover
it was desirable that this fact should if possible bacome public
knowledge before a—press—eonferenese—which S5ir John Cuckney was

’;,Ijl '-""""‘wﬁ':.":'-'é *E'I-;:: make at 4.00 pm that afterncon, in order to announce the
Westland Board'e recommendaticn to shareholders of a revised

proposal from the United “["er:hn_cluc_[_ig_s___j",_n:_:g_:'El::rgtinif"F_ié;.

consortliam,

2
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Ekjuiiiﬂ* Feolods et ﬂhdh’ }4hﬁb' &ley

9

9. Thege considerations were very much in the mind of my Right
Hon and Learned Friend the Becretarvy of State for Trade and
Industry when the copy of the Solicitor General's lettar was
brought to his attention at about 1,30 pm that afternoon of

§ January., He took the view that the fact that my Hon and
Lzarnad Priand the Solicitor General had written te my Right Hon
Friend the then Secretary of State for Defencs, and the opinion
which he had expressed, should be brought into the public domain

AS gogn ag pu$51b12+{ He asked his ocfficials to discuss with my

4 office whether the disclosure should be maﬂﬂ,é-nd if so whethar
it should be made from 10 Downing Street, as he said he would
prefﬁf} He made it clear, however, that, subject to the

{ agreement of my office, he wanted the disclosure to be made,
from Lhémﬁgbartment of Trade and Industy if not from 10 Downing
Street. He expressed no view as to the form in which the
disclosure should be made, though it was clear to all concerned
that in the circumstances it was not possible to proceed by way

of a formal and agreed statement.

10. My office ware accordingly approached. {:;hur-m-ia_¢t=ﬂiga;
,m—m&mwj
They did not seek my agreement: they considered - and thay were
right - that I should agree with the view of my Right Hon and
Learned Friend the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry,
that the fact that my Right Hon Friend the Defence Becretary's
latter of 3 January to Lloyds Merchant Bank was thought by the
Solicitor General to contain material inaccuracies which needad
to be corrected should become public knowledge as soon as
possible, and before Sir John Cuckney's press conference, They

| accordingly agreed that the Department of Trade and Industry

ﬁ should disclose that Eact, i-n—mmd-nrrce—wi*th—t‘hr—wﬂhﬁ
gxpﬁeggeﬂ—b?-;he_ses;anaF?—aéfﬁkﬂﬁaﬁuanﬂ that in viaw ﬂf the
urgency af the matter the disclosure should be made by means of

a telephone communication to the Press Association.

3
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@

11. The report finds, in the light of the evidence as to the
sonversations that took place between my office and the
Department of Trade and Industry, that the pepartment acted in
good faith in the belief that they had the authority of their
secratary of State and cover from my office - and therefore
implicitly from me - for proceeding. AR official of the
Department accordingly told a representative of the Press
assocation of my Hon and Learnmed Friend the Solicitor Genaral's
letter and the material elements of what it said, #Ho—deeuwmenis

e il

12. Mr Speaker, as I teold the House on 19 pecember, it was the
policy of the Government, agreed by the Cablnet, that it should
he left to the Westland company to decide what course 1t was

bast to follow in the interests of the company and its

employees. That being so, my right Hon and Learned Friend the

Secretary of State for Trade and Industry was in my uﬁ-ui_ﬁﬁﬂiﬁh—
entirely jﬂﬂ%ﬁ%feﬂ in E:q view that the Emct—that—my Homramd
LaaFne&-Frru1ﬂ—thE=ﬁﬁ;tETEaf—hPaeft%—tﬂnﬁ—thE—vTE?—that“m?—ﬂ1qht
da ol - pmy e P : ﬁi;mlghj_ == =
santain-material 1naccuracies which needed to be cnrrp;ted
should become a matter of public knowledge, if possible before
Sir John Cuckney's press conference at 4.00 pm that day. In 8o
far as what my office said to the Department of Trade and
industry was based on the belief that I should have taken the
same view as my Right Hon and Learned Friend the Secretary of
state for Trade and Industry, had I been caonsulted, they were

entirely right,

1 -&—agiae—u&#h—hhe_jnﬂgmenbaaﬁfgﬁe Head of the Civil Service

that no-one acted culpably or irresponsibly in this matter.

I ﬂ+1mP1¢i} Mw-Lmﬁn

14. Fremains—anly—te-—add—shat a copy of the Read of the Civil
Sarvice's report has been sent to my Right Hon and Learned
Friend the Attorney General, who has authorised me to inform the

House that, having considered the report, he has decided that

4
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thera is no case for proceeding under the Dfficial Secrets Act
in respect of any of the persons concernad in this matter.

In order that there should be ne impediment to co-pperation in
the inguiry, my Right Hon and Learnsd Friend agresd that the
Head of the Civil Service should tell one of the officials
congerned, whose testimony would be wvital to the inguiry, that
he had my Right Hon and Learned Friend's authority to say that,
provided that he received full co-operation in his inguiry, the

official concerned would not be prosecuted in respect of

anything said during the course of the inguiry, My Right Hon

and Learned Friend tells me that he is satisfied that that in
way interfered with the course of justice: on the facts as
disclosed in the inguiry there would have been no guestion of

proceeding against the official concerned.

5
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L

When did the inguiry start? Why the delay? Why the early

confusion over the appointment of an inguiry? Why a leak inquiry,
given the circumstances revealed in your statement? When was the
inquiry completed and when did the Attorney-General receive the
report? |[NB: The media see significance im the early confusion over
whether an inquiry was being mountedjand the amount of time the
Attorney-General has had to consider the Cabinet Secretary's report

may be thought to be material for mischief.]

¥hy did the Prime Minister say (col 1208, January 16) of the

custom with regard to leak inguiries - "Their ocutcome is not

announced"” when there are precedents? [- a finnicky point which

the media has pursued. The mEd%ﬁgﬂre also saying that without

media and Parliamentary pressure/ /Commons' statement would not have been

made] .

What has happened about inquiries into other leaks during the
Westland affair and especially into the leak in the Observer of
Sunday, December 22 into Mr Brittan's minute of October 47

Is a leak ingquiry being instituted into the source of the artiele
in the Tinancial Times of January 22 headed "Younger considers

cancelling Nimrod early warning aireraft"?

Will the Prime Minister publish the text of Sir Robert Armstrong's
report of his inquiry?

Is & Minister of the Crown, including the Prime Minister, permitted
to leak a classifieddocument, whether or not it contains the advice
of Law Officers? What rules, conventions, or law cover the
disclosure of advice by the Law Officers?

Who drew the attention of the Selicitor General to Mr Heseltine's
letter to Mr Horne?

Why was it felt necessary to make known publicly the Solicltor
General's doubts about the accuracy of Mr Heseltine's letter to
Mr Horne? And why the urgency to get 1t out before Westland's
press conference? Could not the purpose have been served by a
message to Westland's beard? Did Westland ask for the information
to be made public that day before its press conference?




2.

E!.. Would there not have been time for a short public statement to be

made calling Mr Heseltine's assertions inte question rather than
a hole-in-the-corner operation? Why not have given the Press
Association an attributable statement?

Were the Law Officers consulted at any time over the intended
leak to PA, and did that idea occur to anyone?

1s there any guestion of prosecution of any Minister or offieial,
leaving aside the official who has been granted immunity? Does
your statement close the chapter so far as criminal proceedings are
concerned? If so, does this not reveal there is one Official
Secretz Act for Ministers and senior civil servants and one for
more junior grades?

Will you name the officials involved? Are they to be disciplined
or removed to other posts?

Why wouldn't your office leak the vital plece of informatlon, given
the urgencey? Was No 10 trying to distance itself from dirty tricks?

When was the Solicitor Geperal's letter to Mr Heseltine available
in DTI and No 10; and why did Mr Brittan not see it until 1.307%

Is the Prime Minister aware that the Law Officers believe that their
independence has been compromised by this episode? What is she
going to do about it? What assurance can there be that there will
be no skulduggery with Law Officers' communications in future? Have
any new instructions been issued to Ministers or Departments?

Has any Minister or Law Officer offered their resignation?

Was there any coordination of the leaking through Cabinet Office?
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Ref. ADBG/164

MR FLESHER

Westland: Leak Inquiry

The Department of Trade and Industry tell me that they have
reason to believe that in the House this afternoon a Member of
Parliament may seek to name the official of the Department of
Trade and Industry as having been identified as the culprit in
the leak of the Solicitor General's letter of 6 January.

2% In such an event, I sugpgest that the Prime Minister might
take the following line:

“the inquiry 1 announced is still in progress and has some
considerable way to go. There is no question of findings
having being reached as to the nature of the leak or as to

the identity of anyone involved".

3 I am copying this to the Private Secretaries to the Secretaries
of State for Trade and Industry and Defence; and the Private
osecretaries to the Permanent Secretaries in those Departments.

(NS

M C STARK

16 January 1986
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THE LEGAL gE_t_R_l:Hg? . LAW OFFICERS' DEPARTMENT,
e e S ROYAL COURTS OF JUSTICE,

LONDON, W.C.2.

. 5 L
J Mogg Esqg. 1L E\"m\— Nk:"'" et 2

Principal Prlvate Secretary to Jecretary of .z 1|=I ¥ U“I a\ L
State for Trade and Industry GhinX o

| Victaria Street \ el G M
Londan 5w 15 .Jan,a.;r 1984
F—mﬂ L

Vanga b

i
J.Lm Jﬂm_ Yo h;l Yo EM h)
WESTLARND o s Y o j

rely SRR

I have shown to the Solicitor General the minute fram M=r1“|=lr to you of o A

14 January concerning the Solicitor General's letter to thgﬁncmtar; of State

foe Deferce. 'f't-"'iq-*-'-

The Solicltor General wishes the Secretary of State to know that the middle =]
paragraph in the draft attached to Michell's minute does not accord with the

Solicltor's own recollection and record of events, which as far is material to

this question, iz as follaws:

"Un the evening of Saturday & January, I wae telephoned at
Twysden by the Secretary of State far Trade and Industry,
He told me that the Prime Minister had suggested to him

that he should ask me if & letter from Mr HEE-E'JE"‘EE o

Lloyds Merchant Bank published in The Times that day gave

‘a fair picture'. I had not by then read the letter. 1 did
e — ey,

sa, and said that from my recollection of the telegrams and

recarés | had seen It was materially inaccurste, in that |t

suggested that all the relevant Governments and companios

had indicated the probability of future loss of work for
Westland. Ihis would include additionally the French and
Italian Governments, and Aeraspatizle and MBE among the

companies,

CONFIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IN COMNFIDENCE




- page two -

Later that evening Mr Saunders telephoned me to say that
o100, Mr Powell, had rung him to say that if the Heseltine
letter contained material inaccuracy 1 might p_nasj_bly,..:nr".sider
writing to Mr Heseltine to say so and to advize him to send
a letter of carrection. | told Mr Saunders of-ttrBrittan's
corwersation with me, of my provisional opinion {with which
he, Mr Saunders, concurred) and that I weuld in any event
want to check the documents. Mr Saunders then told Powell
that | would reconsider the documents on Mpnday 6 January
and declde whether or not to write to Mr Heseltine.

Mr Heseltine then the same evening telephoned me at my
request, comwveyed to MOD by Mr Saunders. 1 tald him the
difTiculty about his published letter, and warned him that

[ would probably write to him on Monday & January o point
this out and advise him to correct the inaccuracy. [ told
him that on the basis of myv recollection, from which he did
not In any way dissent, the documents covered only the West
Cerman and Dutch Governments, and Agqusta armong the

companies. [If that was so his letter was mislieading®.

The draft attached to Michell's minute is misleading In that it s calculated
comwey the impression that it was without any external intervention that the
Law Officers Iintervened with Mr Heseltlne at this juncture, Whereas the
Solicitar Ganeral wroote to BMr Hesaltine as he did entirely upon the basis of his
own independent judgment, after consulting with anm official In his Department,

he accordingly cannot concur with the incorporation of the middle paragraph of

thie draft. He canmol acquiBeste in any answer being given which;, expressly or

“by implication, conflicts with his recollection of events.
"

CONFIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IN COMFIDENCE
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- page three -

I am copying thls letter to Michell and the recipients of his minute to you

and, with a copy of Michell's minute, to Charles Powell at No.l0.

nase Boeny

M L SAUNDERS

CONFIDEMTIALCOMMERCIAL N CONFIDEMCE
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FS/Mr Pattie

Sir Brian Haves
PS/SECRETARY OF STATE Mr Maecdonald

Mr Rickford
Frams Mr 0'S5hes
3 Mr Wiggins - Cabinet Office
M J MICHELL Mr Bourn - MOD
US/AIR Mr Saunders - Attorney
va 7/2 General's Office
215 4377

14 January 1986

WESTLAND

We are working now on possible passages for the Secretary of

State's speech tomorrow night.

2. In the House yesterday the Seeretery of 5tate was asked

by Hr Funt_ﬂgﬁqthe Law Officers obtained the information an

which they judged that Mr Heseltine had given "misleading informa-
tion" (as Mr Foot put it) to Llovds Merchant Banlk. The Secretray
of 5tate gave a very general answer whiech was not well received

in all parts of the House,

E T I1f the question is asked again tomorrow, I think the Secretary

of State would be well advised to give a full and factual anawer

on the lines of the attached. This would obvioualy need to

be clesred with the Law Officers in addition to the usual arrange=
ments. May I suggest you initiate this process tonight through
the Private Office net?

The anawer does not go on te deal with the further exchange
letters between Mr Heseltine and the Law Officers,; &lthough
could af course do so, but the further exchange iz not germane

Mr Foot's question,

L
fﬁaxlhh—ﬂ”' .Pﬂ“Ltijjkh
M J“MICHELL

99980
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LAW OFFICERS LETTER

The Law Officers were asked by No.10 to advise on the terms of the

Prime Minister's letter of 1 January ka 5ir John Cuckney,; since

it was clear that her letter would be &an importent document

and would be relied upon by shareholders and others. They gave

their advice on the basis of documents supplied by Government

Departments recording certain views expressed by European

e

Governments and companies.

-

¥When my Rt Hon Friend the member for Henmley wrote to Lloyds

Merchant Bank oen 3 January, the Law Officers noticed that the

terms of hie letter were in certain respecte different From

the terms used in the Prime Minister's letter. They therafore

wrakte to my Rt Hon Friend stating that on the basis of the docu-
ments they had seen - and they emphasised this point - they
considered my Rt Hon Friend's letter contained material inaccuracies,
and they advised my Rt Hon Friend to write again to Lloyds Merchant

Bank correcting those inaccuracies.

Thus it wAas unnecessary for the Law Officers to obtain any new
material in order to form the opinion they reached on my Rt
Hon Friend's letter. Indeed, their opinion was expressly guelified

ag being based only upon the documents they had already seen.




70 Whitehall, London swia 2as  Telephone o1-233 8319

Secretary of the Cabinet and Head af the Home Civil Service

Sir Robert Armstrong oce cvo

Ref. AQBG/154 15 January 19286

‘bém’ H ,

Thank you for your letter of
15 January.

I hope that you will agree to alter
the proposed reply to Mr Jehn Morris on the
lines of the draft attached.

The amendment to the first sentence
would bring the answer into line with what
has been said by the Prime Minister and
aothers. The amendment to the second
sentence would make itclear that - contrarty
to the impression created by press reportls
today - the inquiry is still under way and
has not been completed.

] am sending a copy of this letter and
of the revised draft to Nigel Wicks.

Retet

Henry Steel Esg OCMG OBL




Mr John Morris: To ask Mr Attorney General, whether
he will refer the apparent hreach of any security
involved in the disclosure of the contents of the
recent letter of the Selicitor General to the Right
Honourable Member for Hemley to the DBirector of
Public Prosecutions for his consideration and advice
as to whether a decision to prosecute under section 2
of the 0fficial Secrets Act should be taken.

An internal inquiry has been Instituted into the matter to which

the Bt Hon and Learned Gentleman refers. When it has been

: . considerable .
completed - and 1t 15 still some /way ?TQW being completed -
shall be in a position to consider whether it is appropriate to

follow the procedure which he suggests.




Wiih the complimeniz of

the Lepal Secretary

H. Sheal

Adirarmey Gemerad s Clemiers,
Law CHfecers’ Deparrmend,
Rayal Courls of Juiliee
Crrgrad, W04 2LL

il 40F 768 Exin 33]
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LAW OFFICERE CEPARTMENT
REYAL COURTS OF JUSTICE
LONDON, WC2A 2L1L

H STEEL.CMG DBE

LE&EaL SECRETARY

Sir Robert Armstrong GCB CVO

Secretary of the Cabinet 12 January, 1986
Cabinet Office

10 Whitehall

London SW]

s, (2

WESTLAND: LEAK OF SOLICITOR GEMNERAL'S LETTER
We spoke yesterday evening about the reply which the Attorney has to give tomorcow

to Mr. John Morris's guestion on this matter. As you reguested, T am now sending

you the text of the answer which I have prepared and which the Attormey Genaral

has provisionally agreed. When | read it to you on the telephone, you said that
you were inclined to suggest that we should insert the word “"Internal" before

" Enquiries" so as to avoid giving any impression that the current enguiries are
being conducted by the police. I myself see no difficulty about that. Perhaps you
would let me kmnow In the course of today whether you would still recommend [t
and whether you have any other comments to make on the draft.

| am copying this letter and its enclosure to MNigel Wicks In case he has any comments

to make, though he had already told me, before | spoke to you, that he was content

with the general tenor of the proposed answer.
%’r Dyt
/i/ma-;

H - STEEL

e —

COMFIDEMTIAL




PARLIAMENTARY QULESTION.

PRICRITY WRITTER ANSWER

. Thursday_ 16th.....of

QUESTION.

MR JOHN Morrls To ask Mr. Attorney General, whether he

will refer the apparent breach of any security
irvolved in the disclosure of the contents of the
recent letter of the Solicitor General to the
Right Honourable Member for Henley to the
Director of Public Prosecutions for his consider-
ation and advice as to whether a decision to
prosecute udner section 2 of the Official
Secrets Act should be taken.

MEnnrr's CONSTITUENCY :— HEMLEY

ANSWER.

TiE ATTORNEY-GINERAL ! —

Enguiries are currently being made into the matter to which the

Rt. Hon. and Learmed Gentleman refers.  When they have been

conmpleted 1 shall be In a position to consider whether it is appropriate

to follow the procedure which he sugpests.
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Ref. ADEBG /134

ME WICKS

In' my minute of [pmenunry [&086 AL
gbout the leak of the Seliciter General
letter to the then Secretary of State foT
Defence, 1 am afraid that there was a misprint
in the f£irst line of paragraph 5. The
Attorney Generdal came te seo meoon 10 January
at his request, not at mino,

e

2 Iam: sending-a copy of this minute to the

Attorney General.

rq\

S A PR -
ROBERT ARMSE RN

14 January 1986

CONEIDENTIAL
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MR WICKS §_1 ?.r_,_f- %* ?

J‘-}_L_L.-J
fo .

You will remember that the Solicitor General wrote to the
then Secretary of State for Defence on 6 January (copy attached)]
suggesting that the evidence.hid ﬁEt support a statement which
the Secretary of State had made in his letter of 3 January to
Mr David Horne. Within a very short time after 1ts issue
selected parts of that letter had been leaked to the Press

pasociation and were reported on tapes and in the newspapers.

& Mr Alan Williamz MP has written to tha Prime Minister to
ask for institotion of a formal leak inguiry into this leak.
There are questions to the Attorney General on Monday 131 January
which will provide an opportunity for the Attorney Genaral to be
guestioned on the matter,

3. I made some preliminary inguiries of my own on 8 January.
I did not press these inguiries to anything like a conclusion,
but I reached a point where I did not think that it would be
nseful for me to take matters any further.

4. The Attorney General wrote to me to ask whether I Ehought
that he should ask me to institute a formal leak investigation.
I replied to the effect that, having made certain inguiries
myself, I had come to the conclusion that no unseful purpose
would be served by a formal lnvestigation.

h 15
5. The Attorney General came to see me, At my request, earlier

today. He was extremely concernsd about this matter. He

polnted out that the independance and impartiality of the Law
Dfficers could be thought to be in some degree compromised by
the leak. There was no doubt that the leak was a prima facie
breach of Section 2 of the Official Secrets Act 1911. 1t was

1
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for the Atborney General to decide whether inguiries should be
instituted with a view to prosecution under that Section. If he
was asked whether he proposed to institute pollice inguiries, and
there was no leak investigation, he would be put into an
impossible position: he could not refuse to institute police
inguiries without being thought to be protecting one of his

colleagues,

6. If it was decided to institute a formal leak investigation,
he could reply to the effect that such an investigation had been
institoted and that he would take his decision as to whether
thare shonld be any further inguiries by the police, leading to
the possibility of prosecution, when he had the report of the

leak investigation,

T Having discusaed this matter further with the Attornay
General and with you, I now seek authority to institute a formal
laak investigation into the circumstances in which the Solicitor
General's letter of & January came 1nto the hands of the Press
aAssociation, I propose to remit the condoct of this inquiry to
the investigator who is already looking into the leak of the
Secretary of State for Trade and Industry's minute of 4 October.

B. In a matter as sensitive as this the investigator may well
spcounter difficulties with people who do not want to answer
questicons for fear of incriminating themselves or others, or who

may aven be disposed to tell lies, either to protect themselves

or to protect others, 1 propose; with the Attorney General's
agreement, to say to the investigator that, if he does encounter
any such difficulties, I shall be prepared to ask the Attorney
General to consider the possibility of ocffering an immunity from
prosecution or disciplinary action, if truthful and frank

answers are given,

.
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;P The report will be made to me personally, and I shall of

course discuss it with the Prime Minlster and the Attorney
its findings and what, 1f any,

whan I have consldersad
minded to recommend.

General ,

action I should be

R;

ROBERT ARMSTRONG

10 January 1986
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ROYAL COURTS OF JUSTICE
LONDOMN, WCZ2A ZLL

=405 784! Exmn
Copy to:
PS/Minister (AF)
PS5/Minister (DP)

PS/Minister (DS
P5/US of S(DP)
FS/PUS A =3
PS/CDP 2
PS/CDEC 7 JANI9BS
The Rt. Hon. Michael Heseltine MP., DUS (DP)
Secretary of State for Defence CPR
Ministry of Defence CPE
Main Building DDED
Whitehall
London SWI & January 1966

CAEL

1
A e T SN T
WESTLAND

I saw in "The Times" on Saturday the text of a |etter you are reported to have
sent to the Marmaging Uirector of Lloyds Merchant Bank. [n the course af vour
arswer o the thirg guestion asked by Mr Horne, concerning the indications
received by HMLEG frorm "European Governments and companiss" as to the proiecis
which "may be lost to Westland if the United Technologies/Fiat proposals ars

accepted", vou state:

"There are indications available to HMG from bath the other
Governments and the companies concerned that a Westland

| Inkwith Sikorsky/Fiat would be incompatible with participation
by that company on behalf of the L |n the collaborative

battlefield helicopter and MNHAU projects”.

This sentence, when read with the rest of the paragraph (in which the Defence

Ministars of four Governments apart from the UK are referred to), necessarily

implles that all the Covernmeants and a_l the companies involved in the

collaborative battletfe.z helicopter and MNHF0 projects have glven this indicatiz-

ta HMG,
The telegrams {(MNo.44d of 17 December from the Hague and MNos.l037 and |02%

CONFIDENTIAL
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of 5 December from Rome) and the record of your meeting with the West

German Defence Minister in MNovember which were available to me when [ gave

advice on 3] December to the Prime Minister on the text af her reply to

Sir John Cuckney, do not seem to m2 1o support a statement that all the
Governmerits and all the companies have indicated that 3 Westland link with
Slkorsky/Figt would be Incompatible with participation by that company in the
projects. The documents | have seen contain evidence that the Netherlands'
Defence Se-retary, the German Defence Minister and the Chairman of Agusta

have commanted to the knowledge of HMG [N variods ways DN adverse CONSEQUENCES
which may flow from a deciclon to accept the Sikorsky offer. (In addition to
Agusta, the documents disclose that Asrospatiale and MBB are additionally

irvalved in the projects).

It is foresesable that vour letter will be relied upon by the Westland Board and its
shareholders.  Conslstently with the advice 1 gave to the Prime Minister on
31 December, the Government in such circumnstances is under a duty not to give

informatic— which s Incomplete ur insccurate In any material particuiar.

On the basis of the information contained In the documents to which [ have referred,
which | emphasise are all that [ haye seen, the sentence in your letter 1o

Mr Horne does in my opinion contain material inaceuracies in the respects [ have
mentioned, and ] therefore must advise that vou should write again to Mr Horne

correcting the inaccuracies.
I am copying this letter to the Prime Minister and to the Secretary of State for

Foreign ang Commonwealth Affairs, Secretary of State for Trade and Industry

and. the Chief Secretary of the Treasury.

. Folagd _—RV

-
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PRIME MINISTER

Later information 1s that Mr Brittan does

not want a leak enquiry. Robert is thinking

of a way through on the lines we discussed

and will advise.

H.L.WICES
B January L9HE
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Private Secretary B January 1986

WESTLAND: LEAK INQUIRY

I encloee the information which
Eir Brian Hayes' Private Secretary requested
in hie letter of & January to Bir Clive
Whitmore's Private Secretary. I have
designated Peter Joce, Wo. 10's Security
Officer, as your first point of contact
here on any matters relating to the inguiry
which you may wish te pursue.

N L WICKS

ordon Burrett, Esqg.
Department of Trade and Industry
CONFIDENTIAL
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WESTLAND - LEAE ENQUIRY

The answers to the questions posed in Jonathan Startup's

letter dated 6 January 1986 are:

Becretary of State for Mr. Startup's letter
Trade and Industry's to Mr Stark dated
minute to the Prime 24 December 1985
Minister dated 4.10.85

Question 1 Mr P Warry (Policy Unit) NONE

Question 2 Prime Minister Mr M.L. Wicks

Mr N.L. Wicks (Principal Mr. C.D. Powell
Frivate Secretary)

Mr C.D. Powell (Private
Secretary)

Mr N. Owen (Policy Unit)

(Mr D. Norgrove, Private
Secretary but only after
22 December)

Question 3 Confidential Filing - 11 Confidential Filing - 9
Garden Rooms = 13 Garden Rooms - 13

Policy Unit Secretaries
S

Question 4 Original and copy have
been mustered

Question 5 Apart from restrictions on
circulation, none.

jjf}-rLt
P.S,/ JOCE

7 January 1986
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LAW OFFICERS' DEPARTMENT
ROTYAL COURTS OF JdUSTICE
ONDON, WCZA 2LL

M, STEEL GG OBE
LEGAL SELRETART

7 January, lS'E*E.

Sir Robert Armstrong GCB
Secretary af the Cabinet
Cabinet Dffice

70 Whitehall

London SW

Qo lor

WESTLAND: LEAK OF SOLICITOR GENERAL'S LETTER TO THE DEFEMNCE SECRETARY

¥ou will have seen from the last substantive paragraph of the letter which the
Solicitor General sent to Mr. Heseltlne this marnlng the seriousness with which ne,
{and, | may add, the Attorney Gereral) views the leaking ofhis earller letter of

& January. The Attorney General has asked me to sound out your opinion on whether

it would be appropriate for us to ask for a formal leak irwestigation to take place.

The Solicitor General's letter of 6 January was, as you know, copled to the Prime
Ministar, the Forelgn and Commonwealth Secretary, the Trade-and Industry Secretary
and the Chief Secretary to the Treasury and also, subsequently, to you. [ am, however,
capying thiz present letter only to Migel Wicks.

CONFIDEMNTIAL
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MR_WICKS

WESTLANDS - LEAK ENOUIRY

rr—

1 attach a note setting out the answers
to the guestions posed in Jonathan Startup's
attached letter dated & January.

If you so desire I would be content to

be Mr. Burrett's "first point of contact"
{third paragraph from end of Startup's
letter refers).

7 January 1986
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WESTLAND — LEAK ENQUITRY

The answers to the guestions posed in Jonmathan Startup's

letter dated 6 January 1986 are:

Secretary of State for Mr. Startup's letter
Trade and Industry's to Mr Stark dated
minute to the Prime 24 December 1985
Minister dated 4.10.E5

Question 1 Mr F Warry (Policy Unit)

pQuestion 2 Prime Minister Mr N.L. Wicks

Mr N.L. Wicks (Principal Mr. C.D. Powell
Private Secretary)

Mr C.D. Powell [Private
Secretaryl

Mr N. Owen (Policy Unit)

(Mr D. Norgrove, Private
Secretary but only after
£2 December)

Question 3 Confidential FPiling - 11 Confidential Filing - 9
Garden Rooms - 13 Garden Rooms - 13

Policy Unit Secretaries
=4

Questicon 4 Original and copy have
baean mustered

Question 5 Apart from restrictions on
circulation, none.

Pl

[<]

P;EifJDCE

7 January 19Bé
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DEPARTMENT OF TRADE AND INDUSTRY
1-12 VICTORIA STREET
LONDOMN SWIH O0ET
Talephons ¢Birect dislingimj-215p 3972

OFN 2i%y
[=wichbaard 0-21% JRTT

6 January 1986

S Briat AiPpes KO8
Pormanan Seorerary

John Pitt-Brooke Esqg
Privata Secratary to
Sir Clive Whitmore ECB CVO
Ministry owf Defence
Main Building
Whitehall
LONDON 5wl

Dewr Vil

WESTLAND: LEAK ENQUIRY

Az you know, Gordon Burrett has undertaken the enguiry into
the apparent leak of information contained in mp-Sacratary
of State's minute to the Prime Minister of 4 D&tober 1985.
He has asked me to seek your and copy recipfents' help in
obtaining the following informatiocn to assist his aenquiry;

1. the names and designations of all theose in your
Dapartment or Office to whom the minute "&6F 4

October was copied:

a similar list of those who subseguently saw each
copy (including the original) because their work
requirad them to be Familiar with the contents;

a4 similar list of those who, in addition to the
above, would have had access to a copy;

cenfirmation that 211 the copies mada, 25 w=ll as
the original, can be accounted for;

details of any special procedures you adopt for

handling DTI papers classified: "Confidential :
Commercial in Ceonfidence : Market Sensitiva";

ELFAAL
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2

information as at 1, 2 and 3 above in respect of
my letter of 24 December to Michael Stark
propoeing the setting up of an enguiry (not
copied te PS/Chancellor of the Duchy of
Lancaster, to whom I am now sending a copy):

Tha lists should include Ministers and Special Advisers
where appropriate. If the information reguested at (3)
above would invelve excessive work or time, a general
indication would be sufficiant (eg so many registry staff,
secrataries etec) — at least at this stage.

It would be wery helpful if the above information could
reacn Mr Burrstt by close of play on Wednesday, 8 January at
the latesgk - besfors 1F poszible,

Would you also please designate somecne to act as
Mr Burrett's first point of contact In your Department on
any matters relating to the enquiry he may wish to pursue?

Please send vour reply direct to Gordon Burratt, c/fo
Department of Trade and Industry, Room 125, Banctuary
Buildings, Great Smith Street, SW1P 3DB (telephone: 01-215
3720).

I am sending copies of this letter to the Privata
BSecretaries to Sir Antony Acland, Sir Peter Middleton, Sir
Michael Quinlan, Sir Crispin Tickell; to Nigel Wicks and to
Michael Stark; and the Private Secretary to the Chanceller
of the Duchy of Lancaster. I should be grateful if these
last three would provide the information in respect of their
offices.

J L STARTUP
Private SBSecretary




CONFIDENTIAL

70 WHITEHALL, LONDON SWI1A 2AS5
01-233 8319

From the Ser.ram{p -;?_j_ the Cabinet and Head r-'_'f- the Home Civil Service
Sir Robert Armstrong GCe CVO

Ref. AODBE/26 2 January 19B6

D Bian |

Westland: Leak Inguiry

Your Private Secretary wrote to mine on 24 December 1985
to ask if I would institute an inquiry into the apparent
disclosure, to The Observer, of the contents (or part of the
contents) of the minute which your Secretary of State sent to
the Prime Minister on 4 October.

As you say, the circumstances indicate strongly that an
unauthorised disclosure of confidential and commercially
sensitive information has occcurred.

[ agree that an interdepartmental leak inquiry should be
instituted. You will have seen that the Prime Minister also
agrees with that, and is content for Ministers to be
interviewed, if that should prove necessary.

The inguiry will be undertaken by Gordon Burrett, who
will report his results to me. 1 have asked him to be in
touch with vou asbout arrangements to facilitate his inquiry
and should be grateful if he could be given whatever support
he needs in terms of accommodation, backup and so on.

| am sending copies of this letter to Clive Whitmore,
Antony Acland, Peter Middleton, Michael Quinlan, Crispin
Tickell and Nigel Wicks:; and, with a copy of your letter of
24 December, to Henry Steel in the Law Officers' Department.

J,}M et
Rebest
Sir Brian Hayes KCB

CONFIDENTIAL
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary 30 December, 1985.

T Ui,

WESTLAND: LEAK ENQUIRY

I have shown the Prime Minister the letter of 24 December
from Sir Brian Hayes' Private Secretary in which Sir Brian
Hayes seeks Sir Robert Armstrong's approval for an enquiry
into the apparent disclosure, to the Observer newspaper,
of information contained in an official document relating
to Westland.

The Prime Minister agrees such an enquiry should be
instigated. She is also content for Ministers to he interviewed,
should that prove necessary.

I am sending copies of this letter to the Private Secretaries
to Sir Brian Hayes, Sir Clive Whitmore, Sir Antony Acland,

Sir Peter Middleton, Sir Michael Quinlan and Sir Crispin
Tickell.

(N.L. Wicks)

Michael Stark, Ezq.,
Cabinet Offica.

CONFIDENTIAL
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MARKET SENSITIVE

DEFPARTMENT OF TRADE AND INDUSTRY
1-19 VICTORIA STREET
LONDON SWIH OET

Teseakane {Derect diglimgi B-115

GT™ 215 3972
(Switchboardl 215 TRTY

Eu Brpn Mapes KCH

Aarm

prafnf Sacnerary

I#.D&cemhﬂr 1985

Michael Stark Esg
Private Secretary to
sir Robert Armstrong ZCB CVOD
Cabinaet Office
70 Whitehall
LONDON SWl

}E-u' latM.

WESTLAND: LEAK ENQUIRY

I am writing to ask if Sir Robert Armstrong will institute
an enguiry intn the apparent disclosure, to the Observer
Newspaper , r;:f onfidential document relating to Westland.

arhiow. toctned e Y
The Observer, on Sunday 22 December, carried on its front
page an article (of which I attach a copy) reporting the
disclosure of a mi e dated 4 Octoper from my Secretary of
State to the Prime Minister. As you will see from the
atticheéd copy of the minute, the report was not altogether
correct in the views aws ascribed to the Secratary of State, but
thé Fact that the minute is referred to at all indicates
strongly that an unauthorised disglosure of confidential and
commsTeIALLY sensitive information has ocourred.

Sir Brian regards this as a sufficiently serious matter to
justify a full enguiry, as does our Secretary of State. The
engquiry will clearly need to cover all those Departments
that received a copy of the minute. Although this is a
matter for 8ir Robert, he may, I imagine, also wish to seek
the Prime Minister's approval to Ministers being
interviewed,

ELFACH
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I am sending coples of this letter to the Private !
Secrataries to Sir Clive Whitmore, S5ir Antony h;laqﬂ, Sir
Pater Middleton, Sir Michael Quinlan and Sir Crispin

Tickell, and to Nigel Wicks,

J L STARTUP
Private Secretary

ELFACH




Cabinet leak boosts Heseltine @

Brittan’'s shock

Qadhafi stake in Sikorsky deal /

A TOP-SECRET Cabinct
document has been dis-
closed showing that the
Trade and Industry Secret-
ary, Mr Leon Briltan,
originally favoured a Euro-
pean rescue of the Westland

fence of a losms] TaiEGLE 10 U
Prime Miamter by Mr Briftan
on 4 October in which be
cupreseed fhe view thar a
Eur n-backed rescue of
W wonld be * prefer-
abie * b0 bed by the American
Sakowralcy consoertlam .

The mimgie' o be
coiirary i L

company should be left to
hridde dim o fulere . T oanly

5 il extremely embarmassing (o
haim | it abao seems Hkely (o

* powch off w freth rownd of mnis-

tecial im-fighting — and &
wrtch - i fmed whao b guslty
of the leak

In another exiraocdinary
development last night ji was

mevealed thet Colonel (adhali

ol "Libwva will own a shee ol
e dl g o
Eoes S ording fo
company reconds Libya Lo
ook 8 % per cent stake in Fiat,
one of the partnersin the Sikor:
sk bad, as Far back as 1976
Colome] Cudbali's slakre i now
13 percent, Libya b represen-
ted by & dieccios on Fiat's
bewrd

* Minkters were st night
wrgently srudying this laresi
information, which could heve
E |

sre anlikely o be hlmr thar
even & small slice of 'Westland

Westland memo

EXCLUSIVE

by ADAM RAPHAEL, Polilical Edibor

shoald be owned by Libya., Owe
of Mr Heseline"s glbes waid last
night ;* The rews o the Libyan
conneciton mezns that i1's
game, =t and match tous.”
The discinaure of the wmoret
manute will [urher io stren-
gthen Mr Hesehine's band in
the nexi few wesls before the
Westland sharebolders” meel-
ing which will decide the
company 'y [uiwre. e charpe
mace by Wesrlund"s chainman,
S Juhn Cachiey, agalnst M
Heseliine is thar his attempr oo
co-ordinate & Eunopean rescus
wad male lar loa lalean the day .
Bt the minue suggeststhat a
European-hacked consorium
was unider consideratipn by the
Department of Trade snd
Indlusiry, the sponsaring

Minisiry, at a much eatlier
date.

Officials al the deparimeni
conliceed last might the exis-
tence of Mr Brittan’s minute (o
the Prinse Minister bar denjed
thas i revesied s changeafheart
toy Ml Firittam .

‘He has alwayr been
prepared tosee 3 European bid
developed in order that the
Westland board showkd have a
range al opisnns open oit, " said
asemior nificial,

Sigmibicantly, there were
sigad (n ‘Wharechall last night
that Mrs Thatcher has begunio
dismnce hersell from Mr Brit
tan. “Though the Prime
Mimister 5 angry with Mr
Hesebinne sinad oisgmuses Bis mei -
iwen, sl has ne wesh b Finsl

hrrr.rl.'l'nnrhrlm:m‘ﬂd:m:-lﬂ
a crcil argumenit.

There isansigpn that the hifter
W hibchall inlighiing s abol (o
ciease . The Diefenoe Secreiaryis
szid o be Tuvious with Mr
Britian for hawing immediate]y
broken kst Thursday s Cabinet
oconcordal by accusing Mr
Hesebiine on televsion of hokd -
ing ‘a peitol 10 the hewd © ol
Westland's boaed,

Amang Mr Brittan™s defen-
ders are those Tory MPs who
are srromply opposed 1o closer
links with Europe. (Ine of
them, Mr Teddy Taylor, MT
for Sbend Basi, last mighi
said the company shoulkd be [ree
b el s owen cofmeTeis]
docesion wiibiist (hrcals fo s
livelihoodd by the Minisiry of
Defence.

IAN MATHER, Defence Cor-
respandent, writes - The role
of two banks, Malional Wesl-
mansier and Darclays, will he

crucial in deciding the future of
Westland . Between them they
hwve provided nearly £33 mall-
o i bosns end overdrafts, and
it wems Ehedr decisane to call a halt
that bed 10 e crisis,

Supporters of the revised
European pooposats swhmitbed
last Friday argue that the
banks® beit chance of geiting
their maney back lies in the
Furopean deal, since it would
require them o comvert kess od
the debt ingo Wesittand shares,
Under the revised Ewnropean
offer, MNational Westmnster
and Barclhys would ke £21
miflion of Westland shares bei -
wees them. Under the
Sakoraky-Fia deal they would
take £28 million

Both camps will be con-
ceidratiag their efforts on the
hanks over the coming days.
Without the banks" approval,
both elabogately-sirnciuged
prapesaty woukd collspse, The

-..-ﬂ.lirﬂi:l-l-"llm, ﬂﬂu‘ﬂﬂ'ﬂﬂl‘ﬂln

B =
- T I e,

hamnks sgreed to the terms of the
Sikorsky-Fist proposal belore
the new Europesn oller was
presenbed. -

Neimapedy, the sharebolders
willl haee o mtify one pescuc
packagsortheoiher . Whatever
the Westhand board's attitude

lurns out (o be the BEaropean

onsortiom's advisers, Lioypds
Merchant Bank, believe they
cam muster the |0 per cent
supporl among shareholders
necessary o loroe an extieos-
dinary genersl meeting to
consider the deal.

W High stakes for Hesltine,
page 3.
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WESTLAND = W G’El‘-ﬂ-ﬁ-r Ao
This minute sets put Lhe situatisn facing Westland and discyzzes
how the Covernment might resgond to it. The company will glmost
certainly go into recelvership if a solutian cannot be found
before the end aof Novembep although I believe the Government
will need to indicate its position before _that date. Mora
immediatély. the sithatinn may affeect what You can say to Mp
candhi when he comes on 14 QOctober about the prospective Indian
order for W30-160 helicopters.

BACKGROUND

2 Following the Price Waterhouse review of the company's
‘Position, Sir John Cuckney put to my Department and tp the
Ministry of Defence pProposals for a finaneial reconstruction
which he believed was an essential first step in a strategy for
the company's future viability. The main Ffeatures ol this
package were: ;

(i) New capital to be ralsed for existing shareholders and
8 new large minority sharehclder, possibly Sikersky or
8 European cempany, with whom Westland are in
discussion.

Westland's banks to convert a substantial portion of
overdralft inteo equity.

The Government to underwrite 45 sales of the W30-160
helicopter in order to avoid @ crippling write-off of
inventory against shareholders' funds fop the financial
year ending 30 September 1885,




3 Officialas have reviewed these proposals and the underlying
financial position with Westland's staff and advisers. They have

concluded:

&l The proaosed package would indeed provide a reasonzble
prospect ofF ‘securing the conpany's wiability in the

mediom tern.

AL the other extrenge, iF o aetion

receivership ig likely to be unavoidable.

It might be possible te construct 'an adeguate package
en the same basis as that proposed by the company, but
invelving a smaller number of W30-160 sales - perhaps
only the 21 aireraft for the Indian 0il and Natural Gas
Corporation (ONGC). This could only bas substantiated,
however, by discussion with the company's bankers.

Annex A gives a summary of the company's financial

position and the impact of a reconstruction package.

4 I do not believe that an underwriting of sales on the scale
proposed by Westland would be justified. However I believe there
may be a case, for the reasons set out bDelow, for underwriting
the sale of 21 -helicopters if there remain good prospects of
concluding the Indian order. If we decided to adopt this
approach, I would envisage asking Westland to negotiate with
their banks and potential partners on the assumption of firm
gsales of 21 HEﬂ-HﬁUE. i | ;;;iﬂ-éﬁy that i{_fL_FEEnnstruutian

package could be put together on that basis, ‘and if by the end of

November discussions with the Indians were still in the
Government's judgement active tﬂahgh uncﬂﬁhluded, the Government
- — e ———

would be prepared to consider underwriting the sale of the 21
aircraft. However a final decision would only be made at the
| || time in the light of an up-to-date assessment of the prospects of
| ||obtaining the ONGC order.




g I believe Government participation in a reconatruction

package should be conditional on the following assurances [rom

Westland:

that they would continue to participate in the EHIOD

prosramme.

proZranee would confinus gt least

B

progpurement timetable becomes ¢lear in
Lthat: they would continue to provioe spares and support
for the existing MOD helicopter [leet.

that in the event of Government underwriting the
¢ompany would econtinue to use 1ts best endeavours to
sell the sireraft.

POSSIBLE BENEFITS OF GOVERNMENT UNDERWRITING

6 I would not argue that supporting Westland should be a
priority use of rescurces from a purely industrial point of view.
Although Westland 1is the only UK helicopter manufacturer it is
not central to the aerospace industry. Moreover, while ether- UK
companies (notably Rolls FHRoyece) have important business with
Westland, my Department is not aware of any which is financially

dependent on Westland's continued existence.

T Nor is there & strong argument that the proposed package
will improve the chances of my Department's launch aid being
recovered. It would not of itself guarantee continuation of the
W30=300 programme (on which E£38m of the agreed E£47m launch aid
has been paid). That would still eritically depend, I believe,
oen an MOD launch order, Il the programme were terminated, even

after a capital reconstruction, it seems unlikely that much of




the launceh aid eould be recovered withsut serisus Financial
damage to the company. The package should secure the continuation
of the EH101 programme, but enly £5m of the agreed £60m launch

aid for thi=a project has so far been paid.
believe the remaining argument= are:;

Militapy: that it is es=ential to secure support for
the exizting helicepter leel and desirable to presarve
an indigenous source of design, development and supply.
1t is of course for Michael Heseltine to advise on-the

strength of this argument.

Internaticonal: that it will be damaging to the UK's

relations with India if, after the diplomatiec efforts
of the last year, Westland cannot now conclude the

contract for the ONGC.

Political: that il the Government does not help it will
be blamed for allowing the company to go into
receivership.




FOREIGN OWNERSHIP

g At present the company most likely to be willing to take a

large minority sharehelding appears to be Sikorsky. No solution
involving a British cormpany is on the ecards. Westland are in
contact with MBEB, Aercspatial and Apusta and 1 believe they
hould =e encourazed to pursue the opossibility of a Eurcpean

solution. The trosgects of a Furopean solution being developed

Wwithin tne timescale do not seem to be good, but I should' like to

o

get a better assessment of those prospects before responding
formally to Westland's proposals. However, il it emerged that a
solutisan invelving Sikorsky was the only realistice nptian'I da
not believe we should reject the package solely on that ground,
provided we obtained the assurances from the company outlined in

paragrpah 5 above.
FINANCE

10 It is an important leature of the approach I have outlined
that the GCovernment would only agree to underwrite W30-160 sales
if it a=zsessed the prospects of concluding the Indian order as
good - in other words, if the risk of the Government ineurring
expenditure as a result of the underwriting was acceptable.

Monetheless, I have reluctantly concluded that I could not use
any of my Department's agreed PES allocation to meet any
expenditure that might result : the industrial argument for
giving Westland further assistance do not justify the use of my

Department's very scarce and indeed decreasing financial resources.

RECEIVERSHIP

11 If the Government decided not to participate in a package of
the sort I have discussed, the company would probably ge into
receivership. It is by no means certain that such an outcome
would be damaging to essential national interests, or more cosatly
tas the Government than participation in a reconstruction package.




The difficulty is that receivership would create an uncontrolled

situation whose outcome was unpredictable.

i2 Much would depend on whether a purchaser could be found for

key parts of <the Dbusiness - continuing Lynx and Sea King

sroduction, the EHI101 programme and the provision of spares and
support. If so, the Covernment's essentlal procurement interests
would te salfeguardes, Eueh an outcame appearz possible in view
af the interest British Aercspace have expres=ed 1in acauirine

certain parts of the business in the event of receivership.

13 However there would be potentisl costs Lo .the Government.
The Receiver might demand Government funding of his operations in
order to keep the helicopter business going while a purchaser was
sought. There would be indirect costs, for example associated
with ECCD exposure and redundancies. (The company is planning up
te 2,700 redundancies, with possible eclesure of its factories at
Weston and Cowes, even after a reconstruction package. The number
ol jobs lost would be much greater in the event of receivership).
And if no purchaser could be found, receivership might result in
the UK's participation in the EH103and production of Lynx and Sea
King being ended and the provision of spares and support for the
current MOD helicopter fleet being jeopardised.

14 I believe it is a fairly fine judgement whether the risks
invelved in receivership are worth taking. On balance, I believe
it would be preferable to agree to participate in a
reconstruction package if the conditions I have outlined were
met.




GANDHI'S VISIT

15 The situation clearly poses difficulties for the diseussion
af the ONGC order you will wish to have with Mr Gandhi during his
visit. on the one hand, we must continue to <do everything
possible to obtain the contract. On the other hand, you are
1ikely ta be constrained in what vou can say to Mr Gandhi about
the futu=ea of the comrzany, and this may make him relustant to

commit Fimzell Lo the orier.

it Tdeally & reconstruction package would be in place before
the vi=it, enabling vou to give firm assurances about the Ffuture
of the company and to press for conclusion of the contract.

However I think this is most unlikely to be achieved even il we
gave Westland a clear indication of the Government's position
sarly next week; and it could elearly only bDe achieved with
Sikorsky as the minority partner. As I have =zaid, I fthink 1t
would be preferable to delay givinmg a definitive response to
Westland until their discussions with possible .European partners

have progressed further.

17 You will therefore need careful briefing for a variety of
difficult situations, which I suggest officials should put in

hand. You will need to say that Westland is under new management

who are considering plans for strengthening the company
financially. If Mr Gandhi says he intends to purchase, you could
say that the Government hopes the ecompany's plans will be
successfully implemented, and that the order will ©be a
significant help to the company. If Mr Candhi should press for
an assurance on viability you might say that it was not for the
Government to comment but note that the company has a sollid base
of MOD business and that we are confident in the ability of the
new Chairman.




18 I believe it should be possible to deal satisfactorily with
the talks on these lines. There must be a risk, hoWever, that a
non=-committal response on viability will cause the prospects for

the order to recede, or even disappear.

CONCLUSION

15 I re-somrend that our initisl response Lo Westland should te
ts urgs them &te pursue discussions wWiln pos=sible Cturopean
partners urgently. We shoold decide in the light of those
disgussiers whether bto indicate to Westland, on the lineq set ouk
in paragraphs 4 and 5 of this minute, the Government's possible
willingness to participate in a reconstruction package. It will,
in any event, be desirable to indicate our position to the
company reasonably promptly - and certainly well in advance of
the Novembher deadline - both so that the company knows where it
S

stands and to ensure that no gquestion arises of a breach of

Companies Act obligations.

20 You may wish to call an early meeting to discuss the
situation generally, and in particular the handling of Westland

during Mr Gandhi's wvisit.

21 % am copying thiz minute to the Foreign Secretary, the
Chancellor of the Exchequer, the Secretary of State for Defence,
the Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster, the Secretary of State
for Employment, the Minister for Overseas Develcopment and to Sir

(-8

LB
dr October 1985

Robert Armstrong.

Department of Trade & Industry




CONFIDENTIAL ANNEX A
COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE
MARKET SENSITIVE

Summary of Westland's financial position

In the absence of firm orders for W30-160 helicopters, Westland
will need to make provisions of over £90m for inventory and
commitments on the W30 and total provisions of over £110m.
The impact of such provisions on the balance sheet would be

as followsa:

£m
HNet cperating assets 123.7
Tax L 5dd
Net borrowings (90.6)
Minority Interest (13.9)

Shareholders’ funds 13.4

Net borrowinga after deducting b 0.0
cash e

Gearing b +a 672%

2 Clearly such a gearing ratio would be insupportable. In
such eircumstances receivership would be precipitated by the
banks refusing to provide higher facilities or by the gearing
reatrictiona of the company's debenture atocks being breached.
In practice the directora might ask the debenture holders to
appoint a receiver before such a breach cccurred.

Fossible reconstruction package

3 A satisfactory gearing poaition might be achieved by the
following package:
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CONFIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE
MARKET SENSITIVE

Addition to shareholders® im
funds

Sale of 21 W30-160s 20.8
resulting in reduced
provisionas

Conversion of bank overdraft
into egqullty

| for 4 pights issue

25.9% minority shareholder

giving tne following gearing ratioc:

Shareholders' funds

Net borrowings after deducting
casah

Gearing b + a







